EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT |
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
NOTES SUPPLEMENTARY TO THE AGENDA

OFFICER'S REPORT

August 27, 2019 :
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

RE: MONTHLY TONNAGE REPORT FOR 7/2019

2019 2018 PERCENTAGE
SHIP SHIP SHIP

SHIP DAYS SHIP DAYS SHIP DAYS
BMT 5 16 9 22 -44% -27%
BWY 1 & 2 g 31 ) 25 0% +24%
BWY S & 6 0 0 . 0 0 - -
TOTALS: : 14 a7 18 47 -22% - 0%

| 2019 TONNAGE 2018 TONNAGE PERCENTAGE
BMT 89,890 103,627 -13%
BWY 1 & 2 190,265 229,344 _ -17%
BWY 5 & 6 0 0 --
TOTALS : 280,155 332,971 -16%
YEAR TO DATE
2019 TONNAGE 2018 TONNAGE PERCENTAGE

BMT 903,055 945,681 -5%
BWY 1 & 2 1,442,811 1,284,345 +12%
BWY 5 & 6 8,722 0 --
TOTALS : 2,354,589 2,230,026 +6%
BROADWAY 1 & 2 7/2019 6/2019 2019 ¥YTD 2018 YTD
PLYWOOD 27,255 286073 45,963 93, 643
STEEL 121,416 184,554 900,739 833,876
MISC. 41,594 70,966 496,109 356,827
TOTALS : 190,265 541,592 1,442,811 1,284,345
BROADWAY 5 & 6
PLYWOOD : 0 0 0 0
STEEL \ 438,173 0 0 0
MISC. 0 0 8,722 )

TOTALS: 438,173 0] 8,722 0
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BALZANO TERMINAL
COMMODITY 7/2019 /2019 ‘ 2019 YTD 2018 YTD
SCRAP 67,686 76,833 442,197 439,319
STEEL | 22,204 B1,763 388,804 352,842
GYPSUM ' 54,602 109,262

COCOA BEANS 17,452 44,258
LAY UP :

TOTALS: 89,880 158,596 203,055 945,681
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SOUTH JERSEY PCORT CORPORATION

Aug

COMPARATIVE WATER-BORNE TONNAGE STATEMENT

TERMINAL: Balzano

SHIPS
Year To Date

SHIP DAYS
WORKING
IDLE
LAY-UP
TOTAL
Year To Date

IMPORT TONNAGE

BULK

GENERAL
Wood Products
Steel
Miscellaneous

LUMBER

TOTAL IMPORT TONNAGE

Year To Date

EXPORT TONNAGE
BULK
Miscellaneous
Scrap
GENERAL )
TOTAL EXPORT TONNAGE
Year To Date

IMPORT
EXPORT
TOTAL TONNAGE
Yeaxr To Date

BERTHS:

2019

55

15

16
172

¢
22,204
0

0
22,204
460,858

0
67,686
0
67,686
442,197

22,204
67,686
89,890

903,055

2018

69

20

22
210

54,564

0
29,895
0

0
84,459
506,362

0
19,167
0
19,167
439,319

84,459
198,167
103,626
945,681

NET
DIFFERENCE

-4
~14

-54564

-7691

-62255
-45504

0
+48519
0
+48519
+2878

-62255
+48519
-13738
-42626

Page 1
2 2019 12:10

MONTH: 7/2019

PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE

~43%
-19%

~24%
~49%
-26%
-17%

-95%

-73%
+253%
-12%
-4%



PM140602
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

Aug

COMPARATIVE WATER-BRORNE TONNAGE STATEMENT

TERMINAL: Broadway

SHIPS
Year To Date

SHIP DAYS
WORKING
IDLE
LAY-UP
TOTAL
Year To Date

IMPORT TONNAGE

BULK

GENERAL
Wood Products
Steel
Miscellaneous

LUMBER

TOTAL IMPCORT TONNAGE

Year To Date

EXPORT TONNAGE
BULK
Miscellaneous
Scrap
GENERAL
TOTAL EXPORT TONNAGE
Year To Date

IMPORT

EXPORT

TOTAL TONNAGE
Year To Date

BERTHG: 1

2019

14

WO O @

£§5

27,255
2,322

0

¢
29,877
321,342

Lo I = I o B o B

29,577
0
29,577
321,342

2018

15

[+ S = B

7,015

7,015
260,917

o O Q0 O o

© 7,015
G

7.015
260,917

NET
" DIFFERENCE

+1
-1

+8

+8
-3

+27255
-4693
o

0
+22562
+60425

QO Q Q Q

+22562

0
+22562
+60425

Page 1
2 2019 12:11

MONTH: 7/2019
PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE

+100%
-6%
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SJPC
SQUTH JERSEY PCRT CORPORATION

Aug

COMPARATIVE WATER-BORNE TONNAGE STATEMENT

TERMINAL: Broadway

SHIPS
Year To Date

SHIP DAYS
WORKING
IDLE
LAY-UP
TOTAL
Year To Date

IMPORT TONNAGE

BULK

GENERAL
Wood Products
Steel
Miscellaneous

LUMBER

TOTAL IMPORT TONNAGE

Year To Date

EXPORT TONNAGE
BULK
Miscellaneous
Scrap
GENERAL:
TOTAL EXPORT TONNAGE
Year To Date

IMPORT

EXPORT

TOTAL TONNAGE
Year To Date

BERTHS:

2019

37

10

10
72

33,941
¢

0
33,941
180,713

0
33,941
33,941

238,354

3

2018

23

23
g8

125,018

(= = o I -

125,018
257,781

28,863
Yy
g
28,863

180,392

125,018

28,863
153,881
438,173

NET
DIFFERENCE

-2

-4

-13

-13
-16

-125018

O O o a

~-128018
-210100

+5078
0

' 0
+5078
+10321

-125018

+5078
-115%40
-195779

Page 1

2 2019 12:13

MONTH: 7/2019
PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE

-24%
-9%
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

Aug

COMPARATIVE WATER-BCRNE TONNAGE STATEMENT

TERMINAL: Broadway

SHIPS
Year To Date

SHIP DAYS
WORKING
IDLE
LAY-UP
TOTAL
Year To Date

IMPORT TONNAGE

BULK

GENERAL
Wood Products
Steel
Miscellaneous

- LUMBER

TOTAL IMPORT TONNAGE

Year To Date

EXPORT TONNAGE
BULK
Miscellaneous
Scrap
GENERAL
TOTAL EXPORT TONNAGE
Year To Date

IMPORT

EXPORT

TOTAL TONNAGE
Year To Date

BERTHS:

2019

Q H o Qoo 8]

(= = B e BN o]

8,722

D0 O oo

8,722

5

2018

[« I = R = I = R o ]

O o o oo

o O 0o o o

(== I B o B |

NET
DIFFERENCE

+2

O 0o oo

+11

o 0 00 O o

+8722

(== = B o BN o B w0 ]

+8722

Page 1

2 2015 12:13

MONTH: 7/2019

PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE
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SJFC
SQUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

Aug

COMPARATIVE WATER-BORNE TONNAGE STATEMENT

TERMINAL: Broadway

SHIPS
Year To Date

SHIP DAYS
WORKING
IDLE
LAY-UP
TOTAL
Year To Date

IMPORT TONNAGE

BULK

GENERAL
Wood Products
Steel
Miscellaneous

LUMBER

TOTAL IMPORT TONNAGE

Year To Date

EXPORT TONNAGE
BULK
Miscellaneous
Scrap
GENERAL |
TOTAL EXPORT TONNAGE
Year To Date

IMPORT

EXPORT

TOTAL TONNAGE
Year To Date

BERTHS :

2019
53

19
0

0
19
138

27,255
2,322

0

o
29,577
377,745

33,941
0

0
33,941
190,713

29,577
33,941
63,518
568,458

ALL

2018

56

24

24
146

125,018

0

7,015

0

0
132,033
518,698

28,863
0

0
28,863
180,382

132,033

28,863
160,896
699,091

NET
DIFFERENCE

-1
-3

-125018

+27355
-4693

o

0
-102456
-140953

+5078
Y

a
+5078
+10321

-102456
+5078
-87378
-1308633

Page 1
2 2019 12:14

MONTH: 7/2019
PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE

~-10%
-4%
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COMPARATIVE WATER-BORNE TONNAGE STATEMENT

TERMINAL: Paulsboro BERTHS: ALL MONTH: 7/2019

. NET PERCENTAGE

2019 2018 DIFFERENCE DIFFERENCE
SHIPS | o 2 3 -1 ~32%
Year To Date 16 17 -1 _ -5%

SHIP DAYS

WORKING 17 . 19 -2 -10%
IDLE 0 0 0 -
LAY -UPR C 0 o -—-
TOTAL 17 © 19 -2 -10%

Year To Date 116 99 +17 +17%

IMPORT TONNAGE

BULK 0 0 0 .-
GENERAL
Wood Products 0 0 0 -
Steel 0 0 4] -
Miscellaneous 119,094 ° 177,876 -58782 -32%
LUMBER 0 0 0 -—--
TOTAL IMPORT TONNAGE 119,094 177,876 -58782 -32%
Year To Date 884,106 778,117 +105989 +14%

EXPORT TONNAGE

BULK
Miscellaneous 0 0 o -—-
Scrap 0 0 0 ———
GENERAL 0 0 g .-
TOTAL EXPORT TONNAGE 0 v} 4] ——-
Year To Date D o C -
IMPORT ‘ 118,084 177,876 -58782 -32%
EXPORT 0 0 0 .-
TOTAL TONNAGE 119,094 177,876 -58782 -32%

Yeax To Date B84,106 778,117 +105989 +14%
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SJPC

SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

Aug

COMPARATIVE WATER-BORNE TONNAGE STATEMENT

TERMINAL: Salem

SHIPS
Year To Date

SHIP DAYS
WORKING
IDLE
Lay-up
TOTAL
Year To Date

IMPORT TONNAGE

BULK

GENERAL
Wood Products
Steel
Migcellaneous

LUMBRER

TOTAL IMPORT TONNAGE

Year To Date

EXPORT TONNAGE
BULK
Miscellaneous
Scrap
GENERAL
TOTAL EXPORT TONNAGE
Yeaxr To Date

IMPORT

EXPORT

TOTAL TONNAGE
Year To Date

BERTHS:

2019

28

N O O W

28

41,594

Qo 0 O o

41,594
237,363

QOO0 o O

41,594
0
41,594
237,363

2018

1 O O W

33

44,453

o o 0O 0O

44,4533
245,311

L= I I I = B = |

44,453
]
44,453
245,311

NET
DIFFERENCE

-2859

L= B o S s S s

-2859
-7548

oo o oo

-2859

-2859
~7948

Page 1
2 2019 12:18

MONTH: 7/2019
PERCENTAGE

DIFFERENCE

0%
~14%

-14%
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COMPARATIVE WATER-BORNE TCNNAGE STATEMENT

TERMINAL; ALL BERTHS: ALL MONTH: 7/2019

_ NET PERCENTAGE

201% 2018 DIFFERENCE DIFFERENCE
SHIP3 20 26 -6 -22%
Year To Date : 1582 175 -23 -12%

SHIP DAYS

WORKING 56 68 -12 -17%
IDLE 1 2 -1 -49%
LAY-UP 0 0 0 -
TOTAL 57 70 -13 -18%
Year To Date 454 488 -34 -6%

IMPORT TONNAGE

BULK 41,594 224,035 ~182441 -B0%
GENERAL
Wood Products 27,255 0 +272588 -
Steel 22,527 36,910 -12383 ~33%
Miscellanecus 119,094 177,876 -58782 t-32%
LUMBER 4] 0 0 -
TOTAL IMPORT TONNAGE 212,470 438,821 -226351 ~81l%
Year To Date 1,960,073 2,048,488 -8841% -3%

EXPCRT TONNAGE

BULK
Miscellaneous : 33,941 28,863 +5078 +18%

Scrap 67,686 19,167 +48519% +253%

GENERAL 0 0 0 -
TOTAL EXPORT TONNAGE 101,627 48,030 +53597 +112%
Year To Date €32,910 . 619,711 +13199 +2%
IMPORT ' 212,470 438,821 ~226351 -51%
EXPORT 101,627 48,030 +53597 +112%
TOTAL TONNAGE 314,097 486,851 -172754 ~34%

Year To Date 2,592,983 2,668,200 -75217 -2%
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Terminal: Balzano

Commodity

SCRAP
STEEL
GYERSUM
COCOA BEANS
LAY UP
TOTAL:

N b W N =

SJPC

SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

COMPARATIVE CCMMODITY SUMMARY

Berths:

7/20189

67,685.52
22,204.40

BS,888.92

ALL

2019 YTD

442,186

ig8, 804,
.43

54,602

17,451,

903,055.

.97

31

71

42

Page

1

Aug 2 2019 12:19

7/2018
19,167.42

29,895.40
54,563.85

103,626.67

Month: 7/201%

2018 YTD

439,319,
352,841.
109,262,

44,258,

945, 681.

02
74
18
35

29
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Terminal: Broadway

m o= W N

Commodity

WOOD PRODUCTS
STEEL
CEMENT
SALT
NONE
TOTAL:

SJpC

SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

COMPARATIVE COMMODITY SUMMARY

Berths: 1
7/2019

27,254.78
2,322.38

29,577,186

2019 YTD

45,962.63
16,632.87
228,794.07
28,951.91

321,341.58

Page 1
Aug 2 2018 12:21

Monkth: 7/2019

7/2018 2018 YTD
93,642.76

7,015.04 55,758.90
‘ 111,515.51

7,015.04 260,917.17
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Terminal: Broadway

Commodity

1 GRANCEM .
2 CEMENT

TOTAL:

SJpC
SOUTH JERSEY' PORT CORPORATION

Berths:

7/2019
33,%40.582

33,940.92

3

COMPARATIVE COMMODITY SUMMARY

2019 YTD

190, 713.25
47,680.74
238,393,99

Page 1.

Aug 2 2019 12:22

Month: 7/2019

7/2018

28,862.59
125,018.37
153,880.96

2018 YTD

180,392.:41
257,780.%6
438,173.37
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Terminal: Broadway

~] OV Ul 4 W b

Commodity

GRANCEM

WOOD PRODUCTS
STEEL

CEMENT

SALT

FRUIT

NONE

TOTAL:

SJEC

Berths:

7/2019
33,940,92

27,254.78
2,322.38

63,518.08

SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

COMPARATIVE COMMODITY SUMMARY

ALL

201% YTD

190,713.25
45,962.63
16,632.97

276,474.81
29,951.91

8,722.49

568,458.06

Aug

7/2018
28,862,589

7,015,04
125,018.37

160,896.00

Page 1

2 2019 12:22

Month: 7/2019

2018 ¥YTD

i80,382.41
83,642.76
55,758.90
369,296.47

659,090.54
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Terminal: Paulsboro

Commodity

1 STEEL SLABS
TOTAL:

SJPC ' Page 1
SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION Aug 2 2019 12:31

COMPARATIVE COMMODITY SUMMARY

Berths: ALL Month: 7/2019

7/2019 2018 YTD 7/2018 2018 YTD

119,083.58 884,106.25 177,875,924 778,116.75
11%,083.58 884,106.25 177,875.94 778,116.78
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Terminal:

Salem

Commodity

1 SAND

TOTAL:

SJpPC
SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

COMPARATIVE COMMODITY SUMMARY

Berths: ALL

7/2018 2019 YTD

41,594.00 237,363.00
41,594.00 237,363.00

Page 1
‘Aug 2 2019 12:32

Month: 7/2019

7/2018 2018 YTD

44,453.00 245,311.00

44,453.00 245,311.00
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!

Terminal: ALL

O W oo -J0 0 & Wi R

B e pa
LYVINN & I

Commodity

STEEL SLABS
SCRAP
SAND
GRANCEM
WOOD PRODUCTS
STEEL
CEMENT
GYPSUM
SALT
COCOA BEANS
FRUIT
LAY UP
NONE

TOTAL:

SJPC

SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

COMPARATIVE COMMODITY SUMMARY

Berths:

7/2019

119%,093.58
§7,685.52
41,594.00
33,940.92
27,254.78
24,526.78

314,095.58 2,592,982,

ALL

2019 ¥YTD

884,106,
442,196,
.00

237,363

180,713,
45,9862,
405,437.
276,474.
B4,602.
29,951,
17,451,
8,722.

25
97

25
63
28
Bl
43
21
71

49

73

Page

1

Aug 2 2019 1.2:33

Month: 7/2019%

2018 ¥YTD'

7/2018
177,875.94  778,116.79
19,167.42  439,319.02
44,453.00 245,311.00
28,862.59 ° 180,392.41
\ 93,642.76
36,910.44  408,600.64
125,018.37  369,296.47
54,563.85 109,262.18
44,258.35
486,851.61 2,668,199.62
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2016.......... ,CUMULATIVE

SD TONS Sk TONS

34 167357 34 167357
40 145731 74 313088
25 159026 99 472114
20 123447 119 595561
26 143000 145 738562
19 100702 164 839264
105080 189 944344
20 107794 209 1052139
23 931603 232 1143743
18 113897 250 1257641
14 80580 264 1338221
40 132480 304 1470702

DZ O G E I Emo
&
L5 0

BRORDWAY/SALEM

J 22 101854 22 101854
F L0 41356 32 143210
M B 31820 40 175031
A 16 101250 56 276281
M 11 85228 67 361510
J 7 25649 74 387159
J 13 107581 87 494741
A 17 103084 104 597826
§ 3 20137 107 617964
O 11 84305 118 702269
N 5 23760 123 726030
D 29 96924 152 822954

COMBINED
56 269211 56 269211
50 187087 106 456298
33 196847 139 647145
36 224697 175 671843
31 228229 212 1100472
26 126352 238 1226424
212662 276 1439086
3% 210879 313 1649966
26 111741 339 1761708
29 198202 368 1959910
104341 387 2064251
69 225405 456 2293657

CEOWLPLLEN XS
— )
[e=) ©

5JPC
SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

SHIP-DAYS AND TONNAGE

2017.......... . CUMULATIVE 2018...........CUMULATIVE
5D  TONS 5D TONS 5D TONS SD  TONS
BALZANG BALZANO
J 22 125183 22 125193 J 47 181527 47 181527
F 62 265622 B4 390816 F 36 13182% 83 313357
¥ 57 187366 141 578183 M 36 151416 119 464773
A 34 90355 175 668538 A 27 155273 146 620047
M 34 149586 209 8185125 M 22 1144B6 168 734534
J 16 58761 225 876886 J 20 10751% 188 842054
J 26 111974 251 988861 J 22 103626 210 945681
A 34 161895 285 1130757 A 19 116618 229 1062300
5 21 116855 306 1267612 5 24 104710 253 1167010
0 16 94782 322 1362404 0 16 122955 269 1289965
N 15 129806 337 1492211 N 20 B9734 288 1379700
D 23 120099 360 1612310 D 25 BB649 314 1468349
BROADWAY /SALEY BRORDWAY/SRLEM
J 20 191167 20 101167 J 23 121364 23 121364
F 10 48397 30 149565 F 35 175653 58 297017
M 26 153413 56 302980 M 45 373514 103 676532
A 49 429377 105 1732358 A 53 377912 156 1048444
M 25 261083 130 993441 M 37 172180 193 1220545
J 3B 331223 168 1324665 J 37 118747 230 1339293
J 42 249617 210 1574283 Jd 48 383224 278 1122518
A 31 299935 241 1874218 A 37 245270 315 1967788
S 18 174538 259 2048756 5 54 303820 369 2271609
0 42 246890 301 2297647 O 21 190100 "390 2461709
N 25 112652 326 2410300 TN 37 262344 427 2724054
D 39 299351 365 2709651 b 26 166141 453 2890196
COMBINED COMBINED
J 42 226361 42 226361 J 10 302892 70 302892
F 72 314020 114 540381 F 71 307482 141 610375
M 83 340782 197 881163 M 81 524930 222 1135306
A 83 519732 280 1400896 A 80 533186 302 1668492
M 59 410670 335 1811567 M 5% 286587 361 1955080
J 54 389985 393 2201552 J 37 226267 41B 2181348
J 68 361592 461 2563144 J 70 486851 488 2668199
A 65 461831 526 3024975 A 56 361889 544 3030088
S 3% 291393 565 3316368 S 78 408531 622 3438620
0 58 343683 623 3660052 0 37 313055 659 3751675
H 40 242458 663 3902511 N 57 352078 716 4103754
D 62 419451 725 4321962 D 51 254790 767 4358545

Page 1}
Aug 2 2019 12:34

2019...........CUMULATIVE

5D  TONS SD TONS

BALZANO

J 25 151971 25 151973
F 23 128687 48 280668
M 31 177163 79 457831
A 30 116222 109 574054
.M 17 80515 126 654569
J 30 158596 156 813165
J 16 89889 172 903055
A e 0 172 903055
5 - 0 172 903055
o - 0 172 503055
N -- 0 172 503055
D -- 0 172 903055
BRORDWAY/SALEM

J 33 122809 33 122809
F 41 249540 74 372350
M 45 254012 119 626363
A 49 230071 168 B56435
M 38 330197 206 1186632
J 35 273088 241 1465721
J 41 224205 2B2 1689927
A - 0 282 1689927
s -- 0 282 1689927
o -- 0 282 1689927
N -- 0 282 1689927
D -- 0 282 1689927

COMBINED
58 274780 58 274780
64 378237 122 653018
76 431176 198 1084195
79 346294 277 1430489
55 410712 332 1841202
437685 397 2278887
57 314095 454 2592982
454 2592982
454 2592982
454 2592982
454 2592982
454 2592982

DZ0nPouagIITmy
[=3]
(&)

1
1
Looc i aie b e ) e |
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Date

01/02/19
01/07/19
01/08/19
01/10/19
01/15/19
01/20/19
01/20/19
01/24/19
02/01/19
02/03/19
02/05/19
02/08/19
02/09/19
02/18/19
02/24/19
02/28/19
03/01/19
03/04/19
03/04/19
03/05/19
03/11/19
03/21/19
03/25/19
03/27/19
03/27/19
03/30/19

Vessel

LUZON
EVER_GALLANT 299
THORCO_LOGIC 0119
HAMBURG_EAGLE 854
$J2620_BARGE
FEDERAL, BARENTS 301
SPIEKERQOG_2716
SAM_LION
BH2902_BARGE
ASPRI_098
GREAT_PROFIT_302
GLOBAL_ORIOLE
MSJ105_BARGE

MILA 01
NORDIC_LONDOR_304
GENCO_NORMANDY
MORRIS BARGE
GH_SKY BERUTY 864
KOUJU_LILY 867
CALLISTO 104
IOANNA_D 305
POLAND_PEARL
GLOBE_TRINCO
THOR_CALIBER
LAMPARD 306
SINGAPORE_SPIRIT 307

03/30/19°NAUTICAL_ JENNIFER 904

04/05/19
04/08/19
04/16/19
04/158/18
04/22/19
04/26/19
04/27/19
04/28/19
05/08/19
05/09/19
05/16/19
05/21/19
06/03/18
06/02/19
05/30/19
06/03/19
06/07/19
06/10/19

MSJ105_BARGE
BERLIN TRADER 0419
WECO_JOSEFINE_308
HONEY _ISLAND
PAC_ALKAID_7085
BLUEBILL_106
IKAN_PARANG
BH2902_BARGE
THORCO_BASILISK_107
LAVIEEN ROSE 0419
GENCO_NORMANDY
BH2902 BARGE
SPAR_PAVO_309
BUNUN_GLORY 32
COOPER_ISLAND
MSJ105_BARGE
LOWLANDS OPAL
THOR_COURAGE_917

SJPC
SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

Vessels at Balzano, 01/01/2019 through 07/31/2019

WM.N-
Nm«N-
3427

303
1GvIw
401"

20'4"
309"
26'9

230"
29+ 6%
29t6"

wm-m:
336"
26'3"
30'3"
329"
uﬁ-m:
Nm- m:
WM-N_a
303
wu-m._
Nm-Q-
w.._. 1 m-.
M@-m..
243
Nh [} w._
210"
355"

240"
276"
37'5"

28°2"
27'6"
uw. m:

3¢'2n
3449n

Berths: ALL -- ALL
Commodities Berth
SCRAP £4
STEEL £3
STEEL id
STEEL §3
SCRAP 4
STEEL . k3
STEEL B3
GYPSUM k4
SCRAP 4
COCOA_BEANS , k3
STEEL #3
SCRAP fa
SCRAP §4
STEEL #4
STEEL #3
SCRAP #4
SCRAP #4
STEEL #3
STEEL H#4
COCOA_BEANS 42
STEEL £3
SCRAP 4
SCRAP 4
STEEL #2
STEEL #3
STEEL 43
STEEL #4
SCRAP #4
STEEL #3
STEEL #3
SCRAP 44
STEEL - 43
COCOA_BEANS ] #3
SCRAP #4
SCRAP #4
COCOR_BEANS #3
STEEL #4
SCRAP - #4
SCRAP 44
STEEL #3
STEEL 2
SCRAP £4
SCRAP #4
SCRAP #4
STEEL #3

3,466
28,719
0

D
9,250
11,347
1,393
27,373
-~ D
-0
11, 368
8,730
26,407
16,272
0
7.284
21,129
0
3,489
11,956

0.

0
1,009
4,415

¥

0

22,172
6,162

0

0

0

10,612

Out

0
2,499
0

0
22,140
0

0
44,092
3,632
0

0
46,297
3,616
0

0
25,1719
2,626
27,601
0

Page 1
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00

06/11/19
06/16/19
06/21/19
06/24/19
06/26/19
07/06/19
07/18/18
07/21/19
07/22/19
07/29/19

53PC
SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

Vessels at Balzano, 01/01/2019 through 07/31/2019

Berths: ALL -- ALL
Vessel Commodities Berth
MSJ105_BARGE ’ SCRAP #3
CS_CELESTE_912 STEEL 43
GENCO_PREDATOR SCRAP #4
KOMI_003 STEEL 43
GLOBAL_VENUS SCRAP 44
KMARIN MELBOURNE 919 STEEL 44
PELICAN ISLAND SCRAP #4
OCEAN_PEARL SCRAP 44
SERSTAR_EMPRESS_007 STEEL £3
BH2902_BARGE SCRAP 54

Peep
Draft

322"
w.m-w-
35'5"
342
ww.m_.
w&nm:
395"
29"

Pag

Rug 2 201%
Tons Tons

In Out. L
0 3,035
19,953 D
¢ 17,354
22,864 0
0 26,217
4,843 0
0 22,043
0 42,007
17,362 0
0 3,636

e 2
12:34
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19928

Date

02/05/19
01/05/19
01/06/19
01/22/19
01/27/19
01/27/1%
02/08/19
02/15/19
02/21/19
02/24/19
03/04/153
03/10/18
03/17/19
03/18/19
03/20/19
04/01/19
04/06/19
04/07/19
04/14/19
04/15/19
05/08/19
05/09/19
05/19/19
05/24/19
05/28/19
05/29/19
06/03/19
06/11/19
06/15/19
06/24/19

19929 06/28/19

19930

19931
19932
199233
19934
19935

07/03/19
07/05/19
07/10/19
07/15/1%
07/18/19
07/31/19

Vessel

CT_6500
EM_1152
CT_6500
CT_5300
EM 1152
CT_6500
CT 6500
EMT 1152
CT_5300
CT_6500
CT_6500
CT_5300
CT_6500
EMI_1152
CT_6500
CT_6500
EMI_1152
CT_5300
CT_6500
cT_5300
CT_6500
CT_6500
CT_6500
CT_5300
EMI_1152
CT_6500
CT_5300
CT_6500
EMI_1152
CT_6500
CT_5300
CT_6500
CT_6500
EMI_1152
CT_8500
CT_6500

SST VICTORY

SJPC
SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

Vessels at Broadway, 01/01/2019 through 07/31/2019

Commodities

CEMENT

GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEN
GRANCEN
GRANCEY
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM
GRANCEM

Berths: J - 3

Berth

Deep Tons
Draft In

375" 47,681

=R R =R R r RN ol el ol =Rl ol ===l R = = = == s JLUL S

Page 1
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19926
19927

Date

01/01/19
01/11/19
01/17/19
02/05/19
02/18/19
03/15/19
04/04/19
04/18/19
04/23/19
04/24/19
05/23/19
05/28/19
06/25/19
07/02/19
07/23/19
03/12/19
04/14/19
01/05/19
01/06/19
01/22/19
01/27/19
01/27/19
02/08/19
02/15/19
02/21/19
02/24/19
03/04/19
03/10/19
03/17/19
03/18/19
03/20/19
04/01/19
04/06/19
04/07/19
04/14/19
04/15/19
05/68/19
05/09/19
05/19/18
05/24/18
05/28/19
05/29/19
06/03/19
06/11/19
06/15/19

Vessel

LEONIDAS
STRATEGIC_SYNERGY
MYSTRAS 858
S§I_VICTORY
NORD_POTOMAC_001
GREAT LEGEND
KARVUNA_9200
GATEWAY CARGO_MASTER
IKAN_PARANG 7088
ETERNAL_TRIOMPH
TALIMEN
SEA_VOYAGER
TENWA_MARU
BRIGHTEN_TRADER_002
HAY_JIN 7089
CROWN_JADE
PACIFIC_MERMAID
CT_6500

EM 1152

CT_6500

CT_5300

EM_ 1152

CT_6500

CT_6500

EMI_1152

cT_5300

CT_6500

CT_6500

CT_5300

CT_6500

EMT_1152

CT_6500

CT_6500

EMT 1152

CT 3300

CT_6500

CT_5300

CT_6500

CT_ 6500

CT 6500

CT_5300

EMI_1152

CT_8500

CT_5300

CT_6500

5JPC
SQUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

Vessels at Broadway, 01/01/2019 through 07/31/2019

Berths: RLL -- ALL

. Deep
Commodities Berth Draft
SALT k1 38'an
NONE k1
STEEL #1 33"
CEMENT #3  37'5"
WOQD _PRODUCTS f1 33'6"
CEMENT E1 30'g"
STEEL Bl 296"
NONE k1
WOOD_PRODUCTS #r 257"
CEMENT #1 39%qn
CEMENT 1 401"
CEMENT §1 39'4n
CEMENT #1 3argn
STEEL , #1 23'g"
EOOUtmwcccnem #1 303"
FRUIT #5
FRUTT #5
GRANCEM #3
GRANCEM #3
GRANCEM 13
GRANCEM #3
GRANCEM 13
GRANCEM : $3
GRRNCEM #3
GRANCEM #3
GRANCEM 43
GRANCEM . 43
GRANCEM 43
GRANCEM 43
GRANCEM . #3
GRANCEM #3
GRANCEM 43
GRANCEM #3
GRANCEM . #3
GRANCEM #3
GRANCEM $3
GRANCEHM ‘ 43
GRANCEM #3
GRANCEM ) #3
GRANCEM #3
GRANCER #3
GRANCEM §3
GRANCEHM £3
GRANCEM £3
GRANCEM #

CoOCOOQOOOOO OO0 OO OO OoOOOOOOOOOD

Page 1
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3,693
4,873
4,945
4,393
3,016
6,210
4,249

5,357

3,589
4,915
5,304
7,274
5,475
5,845
1,275
4,873
5,537
4,789
5,758
5,618
3,557
4,873
5,437
5,496
4,748
5,642
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SJpC } Page 2
SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION Aug 2 2019 12:36
Vessels at Broadway, 01/01/2019 through 07/31/2019
Berths:  ALL -- ALL
bPeep Tons Tons

Date Vessel Commodities Berth  Draft In Out Length
06/24/19 EMI_1152 GRANCEM #3 0 3,172 350
06/29/19 CT_6500 GRANCEM #3 0 4,512 250°
07/03/1% CT_5300 GRANCEM £3 0 4,915 299!
07/05/19 CT_6500 GRANCEM #3 il 5,519 290
07/10/19 CT_6500 GRANCEM #3 g 5,642 290
07/15/19 EMI_1152 GRANCEM 43 0 6,731 350°
07/18/19 CT_6500 GRANCEM 43 0 5,578 290
G7/31/19 CT_6500 GRANCEM - 3 o 5,551 290!
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No.

Date

Vessel

19501
19502
15503
19551
18552
19553
18554
18556
19557
18558
19559
19560
19561
19562
19563
19564

01/01/19
02/06/19
02/17/19
02/24/19
03/04/18
03/14/19
03/17/19
04/12/19
04/25/19
0%/06/19
05/15/19
06/20/19
06/25/19
06/30/19
07/09/19
07/19/19

ALWINE OLDENDORFF
BTG_EIGER
EVOIKOS_THEC 2
AP_DUBRAVA
BRRHMS
IDC_PEARL
PORT_ORIENT
ZHOU_SHAN_HAT
LOUIS_B
SBI_RUMBA_2
RED_SAKURA
EVOTIKOS_THEO 3
JING_LU_HAI
CLIPPER_IMABART
FJ_STAR
PATRICIA_V

Vessels at

Commodities

STEEL_SLABS
STEEL_SLABS
STEEL_SLABS
STEEL_SLABS
STEEL_SLABS
STEEL_SLABS
STEEL_SLABS
STEEL_SLABS
STEEL_SLABS
STEEL SLABS
STEEL_SLABS
STEEL_SLABS
STEEL_SLABS
STEEL_SLABS
STEEL_SLABS
STEEL_SLABS

SJPC
SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

Paulsboro, 01/01/2019 through 07/31/201%

Berths: ALL -~ ALL
Deep
Praft

Tons
In

Page 1
Bug 2 2019 12:3é
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION Aug Z 2019 12:37
Vessels at Salem, 01/01/2019 through 07/31/2019
Berths: ALL -~ ALL
Deep Tons Tons
No. Dbate Vessel Commedities . Berth Draft In Out Length
19194 03/01/19 CMT_YNOT 2 SAND #1 8,209 0 250"
19195 03/05/19 nze YNOT 2 SAND i1 8,688 0 250°
19196 03/10/19 CMT_YNOY 2 SAND #1 B,479 0 250!
19197 03/17/19 ozelmzoalm SAND #1 8, 688 ] 250"
19198 03/27/19 CMT_YNOT 2 . SAND #1 8,764 o 250"
19199 04/01/19 CMT YNOT 2 SAND #1 8,499 0 250"
13200 04/03/19 nza wzoe 2 SAND #1 8,688 0 250
18201 04/07/19 nzﬁ wzoq 2 SAND il 8,688 9 250"
19202 04/10/19 CMT_YNOT 2 SARD #1 7,653 0 250"
19203 04/22/19 CMT _YNOT_ 2 SAND #1 ’ 8,764 0 250"
19204 04/26/19 nael«zoelm SAND . #1 ‘ 8,536 0 250!
19205 05/01/19 CHT_YNOT 2 SAND C#1 8,857 0 2507
19206 05/07/19 nze «zoa 2 SAND #1 - 8,963 0 250"
19207 05/11/19 nza YNOT_2 SAND #l 8,678 0 250!
19208 05/16/19 CMT_ _YNOT_ 2 SAND 81 8,517 0 250"
19209 05/20/19 nZe YNOT _ 2 SAND ‘ i1 8,046 ] 2507
19210 05/25/19 CMT YNOT w SAND #1 8,536 0 250!
19211 05/2B/19 CMT _YNQOT_ 2 SAND #1 8,29 0 250!
19212 06/04/19 CMT _YNOT 2 - SAND . ) #1 B, 631 0 250!
19213 06/25/19 CMT_YNOT 2 SAND . i1 8, 697 0 250"
19214 07/01/19 QZHKMZOﬂlm SAND il 8,517 0 250"
19215 07/07/19 CMT_YNOT 2 SAKD #1 7,923 0 250"
19216 07/11/19 CMT YNOT_2 SAND #1 8,574 0 250"
19217 07/19/19 CMT_YNOT 2 SAND #1 8,063 0 250"
19218 07/23/19 CMT_YNOT_2 SAND 81 8,517 0 250
19991 02/10/19 n:e «zoa 2 SAND #1 7,953 0 250"
19992 02/16/19 nze YNOT 2 SAND #1 8,094 0 250"
19993 02/22/19 nzelxzoelm SAND 41 8,810 0 250"
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION Aug 2 2019 12:38

CCMMODITY SUMMARY

Balzano , berths: ALL, 01/01/2019 to 07/31/2019

Import Tons Export Tons
1. STEEL 388,804.31 1. SCRAP 442,196.97
2. GYPSUM 54,602.43 ,
3. COCOA_BEANS 17,451.71 BOTAL 442,1596.97
TOTAL 460,858.45
Summary
1. SCRAP 442,196.97
2. STEEL 388,804.31
3. GYPSUM 54,602.43
4. COCOA_BEANS 17,451.71

TOTAL 203,055.42
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Lo V- S I

Broadway , berths:

Import Tons

CEMENT
WOOD_PRODUCTS
SALT

STEEL

TOTAL

sSummary

CEMENT
WOOD_PRODUCTS
SALT

STEEL

NONE

TOTAL

SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

SJPC

COMMODITY SUMMARY

Bug

1, 01/01/2019 to 07/31/2019

228,7%94.07
45,962.63
292,951.81
16,632.97

321,341.58

228,784.07
45,962.63
29,951.91
16,632.97

321,341.58

1.

NONE

Export Tons

TOTAL

Page 1
2 2019 12:38
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION Aug 2 2019 12:39

COMMODITY SUMMARY

Broadway , berths: 3, 01/01/2019 to 07/31/2019
Import Tons Export Tons
1, CEMENT 47,680.74 1. GRANCEM 190,713.25
TOTAL 47,680.74 TOTAL 190,713.25
Summary
1. GRANCEM 130,713.25
2. CEMENT 47,680,74

TOTAL 238,393.99
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| SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION Aug 2 2019 12:40

COMMODITY SUMMARY

Paulsboro , berths: ALL, 01/01/2019 to 07/31/2019

Import Tons Export Tons
1. STEEL SLABS g84,106.25 TOTAL
TOTAL 884,106.25
Summary
1. STEEL_ SLABS 884,106.25

TOTAL 884,106.25
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SQUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION Aug 2 2019 12:40

COMMODITY SUMMARY

Salem , berths: ALL, 01/01/2019 to 07/31/2019

Import Tons Export Tons
1. SAND 237,363.00 TOTAL
TOTAL 237,363.00
Summary
1. SAND 237,363.00

TOTAL 237,363.00
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ALL , berths:
Import Tons

1. STEEL_SLABS
2. STEEL
3. CEMENT
4, SAND
5. GYPSUM
6. WOOD_PRODUCTS
7. SALT
8. COCOA_BEANS
9. FRUIT

TOTAL

Summary

1. STEEL_SLABS
2. SCRAP
3. STEEL
4, CEMENT
5. SAND
6. GRANCEM
7. GYPSUM
8. WOOD_PRODUCTS
9. SALT
10. COCOoA_BEANS
11. FRUIT
12, NONE

TOTAL

SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

SJPC

Page 1

Aug 2 2019 12:41

COMMODITY SUMMARY

ALL,

884,106.25

405,437.28

276,474.81
237,363.00
54,602.43
45,562 .63
29,551.91
17,451.71
8,722.48

1,960,072.

884,106.25
442,198.897
405,437.28
276,474 .81
237,363.00
190,713.25
54,602.43
45,962.63
2%,851.51
17,451.71

8,722,458

2,582,982,

01/01/2018 to 07/31/2019

Export Tons

SCRAP 442,196,587
GRANCEM 150,713.25
NONE

TOTAL 632,5810.22
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SJPC
SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

Balzano SCRAP Vessels from 01/01/201B through 07/31/2018
{Total for 01/01/2019 through 07/31/2019:

Date
Started

01/18/18
01/20/18
01/22/18
01/24/18
01/24/18
02/07/18
p2/0s5/18
02/10/18
02/12/18
02/22/18
03/16/18
03/19/18
03/23/18
p3/28/18
03/30/18
04/02/18
04/06/18
04a/11/18
04/14/18
04/23/18
05/03/18
05/07/18
05/07/18
0s5/08/18
05/21/18
05/28/18
06/01/18
06/07/18
06/15/18
06/28/18
c6/30/18
07/11/18
07/23/18
07/23/18
07/30/18
07/31/18
07/31/18

Ship
Number

18009
18010
18012
18013
18015
18020
18021
18022
18023
18028
18035
18038
18041
18042
18043
18047
18048
18051
18052
18054
18060
18061
180862
18063
18066
18067
18069
18071
18074
18077
i8078
18081
18085
18086
18088
18089
18030

Name of Vesgsel

SIMAGE_AKSAY
5J214_BARGE
S_BRILLIANT
GENCO_NORMANDY
MSJ_105_BARGE
SJ160_BARGE
GILMERTON_BH2%01_BARGE
SJ2620_BARGE :
MSJ105_BARGE
SIKANIA
5J160_BARGE
HOLLAND_PEARL
BH2801_BARGE
S5J105_BARGE
5J214_BARGE
SANTIAGO
AMIS_GLORY
MSJ105_BARGE
GLOBAL_ROSE
SANTIAGO_PEARL
TEAL_BULKER
SJ214_BARGE
S$J199_BARGE
SJ170_BARGE
NORWAY_PEARL
GOLDEN_CECILE
SJ170_BARGE
8J214_BARGE
8J400_BARGE
ORANGE_RIVER
MSJ105_BARGE
BH2901_BARGE
SU170_BARGE
S$J700_BARGE
SJ500_BARGE
SJ214_BARGE
SJ199_ BARGE

Page

1

Aug 2-2019 12:44

Total:

Short Tons

438,319
442,196)

20,947
3,115
4,307

44,093
2,766
3,125
3,588
3,130
3,190

24,656
3,113

36,464
3,611
3,089
3,100

32,109

10,514
3,115

24,470

34,895

25,857
3,107
3,127
2,977

36,374

20,007
3,121
3,082
3,117

49,274
2,697
3,621
3,103
3,118
3,130
3,084
3,108
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION Aug 1 2019 08:17

- GOODsS IN STORAGE: SUMMARY BY COMMODITY

Balzano Broadway Conmbined

Quant S/T Quant s/T Quant s/T
CALCIUM CHLORIDE: BAGS 8 9.64 108 136.01 116 138.65
PLYWOOD: CRATES 2,089 2,621.41 19,658 24,421.%7 21,747 27,043.38
STEEL BARS: BUNDLES 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00
STEEL PILINGS: BDLS. 2 1.51 Y] 0.00 2 1.51
STEEL PIPE: LIFTS 0 C.00 810 1,018B.47 910 1,018.47
STEEL PROFILES: PCS 10 1.68 0 0.00 i0 1.68
STEEL SHEETS: BUNDLES 1 2.54 0 : 0.00 1 2.54
Steel: Coils ' : 246 2,377.85 3 12.95 249 2,380.79
Steel ceoils: Pallets 33 196.70 0 0.00 33 186.70

Y e b T S Ay Mt [ T P - .t ot St

TOTAL o 5,211.33 25,583.40 30,794.72



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION ;
Board of Directors Meeting — August 27, 2019

ACTION ITEM:

A. RESOLUTION 2019-8-0066: ACCEPTANCE OF THE 2018

FINANCIAL AUDIT REPORT

Brent W. Lee & Company, LLC, will present the completed 2018 Financial Audit
Report. As required under Executive Order #122, our Board’s Audit Committee has
received and reviewed the draft 2018 Financial Audit Report.

The aunditors have issued what is equivalent to an unmodified opinion for the 2018 Audit

Report for fiscal year ending December 31, 2018.

The Board Audit Committee and Staff recommend acceptance of the 2018 Financial
Audit and approval of the resolution certifying that each member of the SJPC Board of
Directors has reviewed the audit report.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends Board acceptance and certification of the 2018 Financial Audit as
reviewed by the SJPC Board Audit Committee and -as presented by Brent W. Lee &
Company. '

wofd

N4



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018






BRENT W. LEE & CO., LLC
Certified Public Accounting Firm

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors of the

South Jersey Port Corporation
County of Camden

101 Joseph A. Balzano Boulevard
Camden, New Jersey 08103

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities and the aggregate remaining fund information of the South Jersey Port Corporation, a
component unit of the State of New Jersey, in the County of Camden, State of New Jersey, as of and
for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptrolier General of the United States; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance
- of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.,

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I
conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and in compliance with audit
standards prescribed by the Local Finance Board and by the Division of Local Government Services,
Department of Community Affairs, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that I plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, [n making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

H19-456-5804
Jo08 New Albany Rid., Cinnaminsonr, NJ 08077



effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

[ believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinions.

Opinions

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the South Jersey Port Corporation as of December 31,
2018, and the respective changes in financial pesition and, where applicable, cash tlows, thereof for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

f

Other Matters
Required Supplemental Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information, as listed on the table
of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. [ have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
managenient’s responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge I
obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. [ do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the South Jersey Port Corporation’s basic financial statements. The
Introductory section, combining and individual non-major fund financial statements, and statistical
seclion are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements,

The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements are the responsibility of
management and were derived {rom and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the linancial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the {inancial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
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other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standard generaily'accepted in the United
States of America. In my opinion the combining and individual non-major financial statements are
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them..

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, 1 have also issued a report dated July 26, 2019
on my consideration of the South Jersey Port Corporations internal control over financial reporting
and on my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

Brent W. Lee
Certified Public Accountant

Cinnaminson, New Jersey
July 26, 2019
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BRENT W. LEE & CO., LLC
Certified Public Accounting Firm

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLAINCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors of the
South Jersey Port Corporation
County of Camden

Camden, New Jersey 08103

I have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the

Comptroller General of the United States; and in compliance with audit standards prescribed by the Local

Finance Board and the Division of Local Government Services, Department of Community Affairs, State of

New Jersey, the financial statements of governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major

fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the South Jersey Port Corporation, in the County of

Camden, State of New Jersey as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes to the

financial statements, which collectively comprise South Jersey Port Corporation's basic financial statements,

and have issued my report thereon dated July 26, 2019,

Internal Centrol Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, [ considered the South Jersey Port
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control} to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the South Jersey Port Corporation’s
internal control. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the South Jersey Port
Corporation’s internal control. .

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A marerial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasohable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during my audit I did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that | considered to be material weaknesses. However,

609-456-880M
JIHI8 New Adbany Rd.. Cianaminson, N SUTT
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material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the South Jersey Port Corporation’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, I do not express such an opinion.
The results of my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Pufpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control and compliance and
the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Lhe entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

Brent W. Lee
Certified Public Accountant

Cinnaminson, New Jersey
July 26,2019
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
UNAUDITED
Pursuant to the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 34, the management
of the South Jersey Port Corporation (the Port) offers the readers of the Port's financial statements a
narrative overview and analysis of the activities of the Port for the fiscal period ending December 31,

2018. '

General Port Overview

The South Jersey Port Corporation was created by NJ State Chapter 11A Statutes 12:11A-1 to 12:11 A-23
to operate marine shipping terminals in the South Jersey district consistirig of the counties of Mercer,
~ Burlington, Camden, Gloucester, Salem, Cumberland and Cape May.

The Port Corporation operates the Joseph A. Balzano Marine Terminal and Broadway Terminal facilities
in the City of Camden and the Port of Salem in the City of Salem. The Port Corporation reports to the
State of New Jersey through the Department of the Treasury,

The South Jersey Port Corporation is the choice destination for shippers world-wide, as a leader in
handling break-bulk and bulk cargoes, and as a model agency in developing public/private enterprise
relationships.

The South Jersey Port Corporation has completed Phase I of the development of a new marine terminal in
Gloucester County, New Jersey. In conjunction with the Gloucester County Improvement Authority
(GCIA), the Port is redeveloping the former 13Q-acre British Petroleum (BP) Oil Terminal and an
adjacent 60-acre former Essex Industrial Chemicals, Inc, (Essex) into a new, deep-water marine terminal
with associated processing, distribution, assembly and intermodal operations that will be known as the
Paulsboro Marine Terminal project. This project is being funded by SJIPC marine terminal revenue
bonds. Direct vehicular and truck access from Interstate 295 to the terminal will be provided via a new
two-lane, public access road and bridge structure constructed over Mantua Creek. The access road and
bridge project is being funded by a grant agreement between the NJ Department of Transportation,
Gloucester County and the GCIA.

The Port of Paulsboro site is located along the Delaware River at River Mile (RM) 90 in the Borough of
Paulsboro, New Jersey, which is directly across the river from the Philadelphia International Airport.

The terminal site is bordered by the Delaware River to the north; Mantua Creek to the east: residential
neighborhoods to the west; and a combination of developed and non-developed land to the south. Access
to the Delaware River's main channel is direct and' without obstacle. Phase I project elements include a
single berth pile supported wharf, site development and improvements including dredging and fil}
material placement, as well as the creation of an approximately 20-acre tidal wetlands mitigation site at a
former dredged material management facility known as the Delaware River Equestrian, Agricultural and
Marine Park, (i.e. DREAM Park), which is operated by the GCIA.

The Corporation has funded Phase | of the Paulsboro Marine Terminal Project with proceeds of the Series
2009 P Bonds, as well as a portion of the proceeds of the Series 2007 N Bonds and the Series 2008 O
Bonds. The aggregate amount of Bonds issued for the Paulsboro Marine Terminal Project is
$176,737,986. '



The Corporation has negotiated a lease agreement with Holt Logistics Corporation (Paulsboro Waterfront
Development, LLC) to serve as the terminal operator for the Paulsboro Marine Terminal that shaill house
. private operations, which in turn is expected to generate revenues for the Corporation.

This public-private partnership is already paying dividends as Paulsboro has become the prime port of
call for NLMK USA. A 50-acre dockside parcel at Paulsboro Marine Terminal has been dedicated to the
import of steel slabs for NLMK USA, one of the leading suppliers of steel products in the US. NLMK
USA will use the Paulsboro Marine Terminal as a prime port to import stee! slabs for rail shipment for
distribution throughout North America.

The first ships were received at the Paulsboro Marine Terminal in March 2017,

The opening of the Paulsboro Marine Terminal marks the completion of Phase | and the beginning of a
continued expansion to grow water-borne cargo business. Phase [T will extend the wharf to 2,200 feet to
accommodate up to four ships, a 500-foot barge berth and upland improvements to accommodate futurc
cargo customer needs.

Approximately 4.36 million tons of cargo passed through the Port Corporation's facilities in 2018.
Promoting ecoriomic development, enhancing intermodal facilities, and partnering with private businesses
are the roles the Port Corporation firmly embodies, as is its mission of job growth and port development.

The corporation board consists of [l members: the State Treasurer, ex-officio, or the Treasurer's
designated representative, who shall be a voting member of the corporation, and ten (10) public members,
each of whom shall be a resident of the port district. The Port District is comprised of seven counties:
Mercer, Burlington, Camden, Gloucester, Salem, Cape May and Cumberland. There are three sub-
districts. Sub-district | Mercer and Burlington Counties shall be represented by three (3) public members
with at fease one (1) of whom shall be appointed from each county within this sub-district. Sub-district 2
is Camden and Gloucester Counties they shall be represented by five (5) public members with at least
three (3) public members shall be appointed from Camden County of which one (1) of the appointed
Camden County members shall be appointed from the City of Camden. At least one (I) of the public
members of the sub-district shall be appointed from the Borough of Paulsboro. Sub-district 3 is Salem,
Cape May and Cumberland Counties and shall be represented by two (2) public members. The requisite
qualification is that each member must reside within the port district and they are appointed to represent
for at lease three (3) years preceding their appointment. Public members serve a term of five (3) years and
shall serve until their successor is appointed and qualified. Each member of the corporation before
entering upon their duties shall take and subscribe an oath to perform the duties of their office faithfully,
impartially and justly to the best of their ability. A record of such oath shall be filed in the office of the
Secretary of State. Any vacancies in the appointed membership of the corporation occurring other than by
expiration of term shall be filled in the same manner as the original appointment, but for the unexpired
term only.

Financial Highlights

On December 1, 2002 the Port restructured its long term debt by refunding its Marine Terminal Revenue
Bonds. It issued two new Series of Bonds totaling $121,325,000. On October 16, 2003 the Port issued an
additional $ 11,305,000 in Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds. The net proceeds of 511,218,000 were
utilized for specific capital projects that have been completed. On November 20, 2007 the Port issued
$11,235,000 in Marine Terminal Bonds, Series N for the purpose of implementing certain capital projects
of the Corporation. A majority of these funds were raised to initiate the planning and design of a new
marine terminal to be located in Paulsboro, Gloucester County, New Jersey. In addition. cathodic
protection and warehouse replacement were part of that issue. The net proceeds from the sale of the
Series N Bonds were $11,122.650.



On January 22, 2009, the Port issued its $25,885,000 Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, 2009 Series O
Bonds. The majority of these funds funded site work for the Paulsboro Marine Terminal. The
Corporation used the balance of the funds for other capital improvements benefitting the Port as well as
land acquisition. The net proceeds from the sale of the Series O Bonds were $23,423 461.

On December 30, 2009, the Port issued $157,880,000 in Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series P. This
series funded the construction of Phase | of the Paulsboro Marine Terminal and related costs. More than
$134.4 million dollars of the Series P Bond proceeds were available for the Paulsboro terminal; which
was to include construction of two deep water berths and integrated infrastructure. The balance of the
Bond proceeds were used to fund the required Debt Service Reserve, and capitalized interest through
January 1, 2011.

On September 27, 2012 the South Jersey Port Corporation issued two Series of refunding bonds; its Series
2012 Q Bonds and 2012 Series R Bonds. The 2012 Series Q Bonds refinanced the Series K Bonds, and
the 2012 Series R Bonds refinanced the Series L Bonds. The purpose of these issuances was to realize
debt service savings through the refinancing of the callable portion of the Corporation’s outstanding
bonds. In total $77,305,000 in principal was refunded with these issuances. Total debt service savings
was $14,824,511, with debt service savings realized in every year of the life of the refunded bonds:
although approximately half of the total savings were realized the first two years as per the direction of
the State of New lersey Treasury Department.

On September 29, 2016, the South Jersey Port Corporation issued Marine Terminal Revenue and
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 S in the aggregate principal amount of $40,320,000 (the “Series
2016 S Bonds”), consisting of $33,035,000 Marine Terminal Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2016 S-1 and $7,285,000 Marine Terminal Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 S-2 (AMT).
The purpose of the issue was to realize additional capital investment by refinancing the Corporation’s the
$7,785,000 outstanding principal amount of its $11,305,000 Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series
2003 M and the $9,365,000 outstanding amount of its $11,235,000 Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds,
Series 2007 N and the $19,770,000 outstanding principal amount of its $19,770,000 Marine Terminal
Revenue Bonds, 2009 Series O Bonds. In total, the Port received $43,882,071.59 from the sale of the
bonds and used $40,659,432.72 to defease the prior bonds, $ 237,446.98 for cost of issuance and related
expenses and $2,985,697.09 was made available to undertake additional capital projects at the Port’s
Camden facilities,

On August 29, 2017, the Corporation finally adopted a new subordinated bond resolution. This resolution
precludes the issuance of additional bonds under its existing resolution, with the exception of refunding
bonds which may be issued to refund the outstandmg bonds summarized above. The Subordinated bond
resolution revised and simplified the process for issuing future bond issues by the Corporation and
authorized an initial series of bonds with a not to exceed amount of $255,000,000. On December 5, 2017,
the Corporation issued its $255,000,000 Subordinated Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series 2017,
consisting of $23,860,000 Subordinated Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A (Tax Exempt)
and $231,140,000 Subordinated Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B (AMT), The purpose of
tehe issue was to fund completion of the Paulsboro Marine Terminal and undertake needed repairs at
facilities within the Camden facilities. In total, the Corporation realized $271,099,472.62 from the sale
of the Series 2017 Bonds, representing the $255,000,000 principal amount of the Series 2017 Bonds, plus
an original issue premium of $17.229,246.35 and less a Purchaser’s discount of$l 129,773.73. From
these amounts, the Corporation allocated these proceeds as follows:

(a) $22,168,441.96 was deposited to fund the undertaking of the Tax Exempt Projects. “Tax Exempt
Projects” mean the following: (i) maintenance dredging at Balzano and Broadway terminals, (ii}
reconstruction of connecting bridge over Newton Creek, (iii) environmental remediation and capping of



Corporation property within terminal sites, and (iv) replace underground fire system and utilities within
terminal sites;

{b) $212,815,132,33 was deposited to fund the undertaking of the AMT Projects. “AMT Prajects” mean
the following; (i) deepening to 45'+2' from Paulsboro Berth to channel, including the removal of
approximately 500,000CY of material to be dredged, CDF Disposal; (ii) construction of 600 foot upriver
deepwater wharf; (iii) construction/completion of Mantua Creek Berth Connection, approximately 500
foot including bollards, fenders, and dredging to restore to 20 ft depth; (iv) construction/completion of
downriver deepwater wharf of approximately 950 linear feet and including remaining Deep Draft Berth,
All Infill, Plus Trestles | and 3; (v) upland improvements to Paulsboro terminal facility, including
installation of pavement subbase, asphalt paving of 57 acres+/-, plus striping, installation of 10,000 feet
of terminal fencing, construction of maintenance and repair facility with locker room, construction of
Gate Complex (Security, truck and rail interchange), upgrade to sewage pump station and sanitary force
main to GCUA, installation of fire hydrants and laterals, construction and installation of high-mast lights
and duct banks and completion of terminal rail connections (approximately 2000 feet, plus 4 turnouts) and
(iv) upland improvemients to Balzano and Broadway terminals, including construct/renovate 100,000 sF
warehouse at Broadway Terminal, pier pile repairs, refrigeration system replacement to existing
warehouses (195,120 sf) at Pier 5 to extend useful life of system through end of lease and replace fire
suppression system with existing warehouses;

(c) $22,000,000.00 was deposited to satisfy the Debt Reserve Requirement under the Subordinated
General Bond Resolution;

(d) $445,065.00 was deposited to pay the Costs of [ssuance for the Series 2017 Bonds;

(e) $13,670,833.33 was deposited into the Debt Service Fund to pay a portion of the interest due on the
Series 2017 Bonds on July 1, 2018 and January 1, 2019; and

(f) $50,000 was retained until the Corporation receives notice from the State that the Purchaser has
satisfied its obligation thereto.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Port's basic financial statements,
The Port's basic financial statements comprise fonr components: |) Statement of Net Position, 2
Statement of Revenue and Expenses and Changes in Net Position, 3) Statement of Cash Flows, and 4)
Notes to the Financial Statements.

The statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Port's assets, liabilities and deferred
inflows and outflows, with the difference among them reported as Net Position. Over time, increases or
decreases in Net Position, whether read in conjunction with other data, may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the Port is improving or detcriorating.

The statement of revenues and expenses and changes in Net Position presents information showing how
the Port's uperations g ucnu‘dlcd revenues and incurred expenses, regardless ol the timing of related cash
lows.

The statement of cash flows presents information showing the Port's cash receipts and payments during
the fiscal period, classified by principal sources and uses, segregated into key elements.

l'he. Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is cssential to have a [ull
" understanding of the data provided in the financial statements.



Financial Analysis

Port Assets and Deferred Qutflows of Resources exceeded Port Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of
Resources by $18,004,176 at December 31, 2018.

Port's Net Position
ASSETS 2018 2017
Current & Other Assets $259,897.867 $352,777,500
Capital Assets (Nef) 362,638,219 255,045,205
Total Assets 622,536,086 607,822,705
_D_EFERi{ED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension and OPEB Deferred Qutflows 5,173,517 7,622,120
Bond Discount, Net of Accumulated Amortization 188,410 197,382
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 5,361,927 7,819,502
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities 54,064,392 22,790,617
Long-Term Liabilities 527,501,737 558,806,421
" Tatal Liabilities 581,566,129 581,597,038
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Service Arrangements 410,144 402,989
Unrealized Rental Income 0,805,387 571,344
Deferred Gain on Bond Refunding 365,218 382,609
Pension and OPEB Deferred Inflows 17,746,959 9,980,909
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 28,327,708 11,337,851
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 9,509,672 9,067,720
Restricted for: i
Reserve for Payment of Debt Service 37,293,188 37,293,188
Reserve for [nventory Supplies 1,340,640 1,276,913
Unrestricted:
Unreserved (30,139,324) {24,930,503)
Total Net Position $18,004,176 $22,707,318

A portion of the Port's Net Position reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
improvements, machinery and equipment) less any related debt to acquire those assets that remain
outstanding, Currently the amount of $9,509,672 reflects the current Net Investment in Capital Assets.
An additional portion of the Port's Net Position represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. They are used for capital projects, debt service payments, and cily
and county tax payments. Unrestricted Net Posmon is avallable for any Port related use.

Port Activities
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2018 2017

Operating Revenues:

Marine Direct $20.848,264 $22,114,995
Marine Related " 2,413,962 2,508,538
Other ' 291,093 475,113
Grant Revenue 3,193,957 7.683,362
Total Operating Revenues 26,747,276 32,782,508

Operating Expenses:

General Operating 12,416,933 14,651,902
Repairs & Maintenance 1,172,998 1,225,458
General & A‘dministrative 6,235,529 7.241,448
Grant Expenses 3,193,957 7.683.862
Total Operating Expenses 23019417 30,802,670
Operating Income Before Other Operating Expenses 3,727,859 1,979,838
Other Operating Expenses: ‘
Depreciation 8.057.304 5,812,244
Total Other Operating Expenses 8,057,304 3.812,244
Operating Income/(Loss) After Other Operating Expenses {4,329,445) (3.832,406)

Nenoperating Revenues/(Expenses):

Interest on Investments & Deposits 3,461,397 338.919
Insurance Proceeds ' 435,016
Federal Subsidy Revenue 2,970,692 3.027,503
Gair/{Loss) on Sale of Assets ‘ {99.039)
Amortization Gain on Refunding of Debt ' 17,391 17,351
Amortization of Bond Discount on Refunding (8,972) (8.972)
Amortization of Bond Premium 1,178.236
Net Change in Developers' Escrow (165.957) (284,952)
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on investment 650,357 495,592
Cost of Bond [ssuance Expenses {435,096} (1.144,096)
Interest Expense (25.921,429) {14,.810,359)
Net Nonoperating Revenue/(Expenses) (18,253.381) (12,032,997
Net Income/(Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers {22,582.826) {15.865,403)



Operating Transfers To/ From the State of New Jersey/Other:

Debt Service Aid
Camden City PILOT Revenues

. Camden City PILOT Expenditures
Camden County PILOT Revenues
Camden County PILOT Expenditures
Salem PILOT Revenues
Salem PILOT Expenditures
Paulsboro PILOT Revenues
Paulsboro PILOT Expenditures
Gloucester County PILOT Revenues
Gloucester County PILOT Expenditures
Change in Inventory of Supplies

Total Operating Transfers

Net Income/(L.oss) Before Contributions
Additions to Capital Contributions

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning of Year, As Restated (Note 19)

Net Position - End of Year

2018 2017

17,650,000 17,650,000
4,000,000 4,000,000
(4,000,000) (4,000,000)

- 419,000 419,000
(419,000) " (419,000)
31,224 31,224
(31,224) (31,224)
500,000 500,000
(500,000} (500,000)
150,000 150,000
(150,000) (150,000)
63,727 51,459
17,713,727 17,701,459
(4,869,099) 1,836,056
165,957 456,485
{4,703,142) 2,292,541
$22,707,318  $20,414,777
$18,004,176  $22,707,318

Port activity for 2018 resulted in operating income before depreciation and amortization of $3,727,859.
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Cargo Tonnage

The South Jersey Port Corporation activity for 2018 totaled 4,358,546 tons. This is an increase of
approximately 1% as compared to 2017,

Cargo Tonnage by Type

2,400,000
2,300,000
2,200,000
o 2018
2,100,000
u 2017

2,000,000

1,900,000

1,800,000

Breakbulk

Breakbulk
Breakbulk activity for 2018 decreased 9% when compared to 2017 Port totals.

Bulk

Dry bulk cargoes collectively reached 2,245,984 tons in 2018, which was a 13% increase over the prior
year. Export recycled scrap metals decreased by [% from 2017 while export Grancem® and import
cement finished with an increase of 13% and 51% from 2017. Other bulk cargo activity resulted from
Ruad Salt, Sand, Urea and Gypsum. ‘

Containers

Container tonnage for the year 2018 was zero tons compared to zero tons in 2017,

Other Activity

Ship calls totaled 290 for the ycar ended 2018, 13 more than 2017, Ship days in 2018 totaled 767, an
increase of 5.7% from 2017.
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Opefating Revenues

The Port Corporation generated $26,747,276 total in opérating revenues in 2018. This represents an overall
decrease of $6,035,232 over 2017 totals.

2018 Revenue by Source
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Operating Expenses

Total Corporation operating expenses were $23,019,417 in 2018, a decrease of $7,783,253 when compared
t0 2017.

2018 Operating Expenses
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Capital Assets

The Port’s investment in Capital assets as of December 31, 2018 is $362,638,219.

The investment in capital assets include land, buildings, piers and berths, and machinery and eqUIpment

Net capital assets increased by $107,593,015 in 2018 over 2017.

Land

Building & Improvements |

Land Improvements

Equipment

Engineering & Other
Financing Costs

Subtotal

Less: Accumulated Depreciation & Amortization

Subtotal

Construction in Progress

Total

Long-Term Debt

As of December 31,

comprised of the following:

Revenue Bonds
Capital Lease

Net Pension Payable

Early Retirement

Total
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2018 2017
$19,177,118 $19,177,118
56,957,178 55,147,566
284,403,530 257,224,976
27,002,458 25,573,353
7,203,729 7,203,729
9,159,938 9,159,938
$403,903,951 $373,486,680
128,402,495 120,309,443
275,501,456 253,177,237
87,136,763 1,867,968
$362,638,219 $255,045,205

Long-Term Debt

2018 the Port had accumulated long-term debt of $509,394,713. This balance is

2018 2017
$491,325,719  $504,143,955
999,775 400,000
15,883,939 19,345,036
1,185,280 1,189,516

$509,394,713

$525,078,507




On December 1, 2002 the Port issued Series K $79,295,000 and Series L $42,030,000 Marine Terminal and
Revenue Refunding Bonds, and on Octobér 16, 2003 the Port issued Series M $11,305,000 Marine
Terminal Revenue Bonds and on November 21, 2007 the Port issued Series N $1 1,235,000 Marine
Terminal Revenue Bonds. On January 22, 2009, the Port Issued $25,885,000 in Marine Terminal Bonds,
2012 Series O Bonds. On December 30, 2009 the Port Issued $157,880,000 in Marine Terminal Revenue
Bonds, 2009 Series P Bonds. On September 27, 2012, the Port Issued Series Q&R $77,305,000 Revenue
Refunding Bonds. On September 29, 2016, the Port issued its Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Serijes S,
consisting of consisting of $33,035,000 Marine Terminal Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2016 S-1 and $7,285,000 Marine Terminal Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 S-2. On December 5,
2017, the Corporation issued its $255,000,000 Subordinated Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series 2017,
consisting of $23,860,000 Subordinated Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A (Tax Exempt) and
$231,140,000 Subordinated Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B (AMT).

During 2001 the Port entered into a Capital Lease Agreement with the Delaware River Port Authority in the
amount of $2,000,000 for an electrical substation upgrade at the Broadway Terminal. The terms of the
agreement call for the lease to be repaid over 20 years at 0% interest. As of December 31, 2018 the Port has
not yet commenced any payments on the Capital Lease.

The Board of Directors of the South Jersey Port Corporation adopted a resolution to allow its eligible
employees to participate in' the early retirement incentive program in 2003. Eight employees elected to
participate in the ERI, Payments for the liability will be spread over 30 years. Each consecutive years
payment would increase by 4.00%. The payment schedule incorporates an annual rate of interest equaling
8.25%.

Post retirement benefits are non-pension benefits that a governmental unit has contractually or otherwise
agreed to provide employees once they have retired. An actuarially calculated amount is based on
demographics of potential retirees, inflation and other factors that are part of determining pension liability.
This calculation was done on a 30-year amortization schedule. '
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

EXHIBIT A-1
{Page [ of 2)

ASSETS
2018 2017
Current Assets:
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash & Cash Equivalents $9,913,221 11,345,641
Accounts Receivable {(Net of Allowance for Doubtful
Accounts - $316,300 in 2018 and $273,505 in 2017) 1,743,792 2,309,256
Other Accounts Receivable 5,486,732
Prepaid Expenses 175,847 208,602
Inventory of Supplies 1,340,640 1,276,913
Total Unrestricted Current Assets 13,173,500 24,627,144
Restricte& Assets:
Cash & Cash Equivalents 72,937,908 305,172,871
Investments 155,979,162 £.628.551
Other Accounts Receivable 157,297 134,398
Due from State of New Jersey 17,650,000 i4,214,536
Total Restricted Current Assets 246,724,367 328,150,356
Property, Plant & Equipment (Note 5):
Completed 394,744,013 364,326,742
Construction in Progress 87,136,763 1,867,968
Bond Financing Costs 9,155,938 9,159,938
Total Property, Plant & Equipment 491,040,714 375,354,648
Less: Accumulated Depreciation & Amortization 128,402,405 120,309,443
Net Property, Plant & Equipment 362,638,219 255,045,205
Total Assets 622,536,086 607,822,705
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pension and OPEB Deferred Qutflows 5,173,517 7,622,120
Bond Discount, Net of Accumulated Amortization 188,410 197,382
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 5,361,927 7.819.502
Total Assets and Deferred Qutflows of Resources $627,898.013 615,642,207

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this Statement.
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

LIABILITIES

‘Current Liabilities Payable From Unrestricted Assets:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Payroll Taxes Payable
Accrued Vacation Payable
Pension Payable
Lease Security & Escrow Deposits

Total Current Liabilities Payable From Unrestricted Asscts

Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets:
Accrued Interest Payable
Contracts Payable
Revenue Bonds Payable (Short-Term Portion}
Capital Lease Payablé

Total Cuirent Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets

Long-Term Liabilities:
[.ong-Term Liabilities Payable From Unrestricted Assets:
Early Retirement Payable
Unearned Lease Revenue
Net Pension Payable
OPEB Payable

Total Long-Term Liabilities Payable From Urirestricted Asscts

l.ong-Term Liabilitics Payable From Restricted Assets:
Revenue Bonds Payable (Net of Unamortized Premium)
Capital Lease Payable

Total Long-Term Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS QF RESOURCES
Service Arrangements
Unreatized Rental Income

Gain on Bond Refunding. Net of Accumuited Amortization
Pension and OPEB Deterred Inflows

Tutal Deferred Inflows uf Resources
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted:
Reserve for Payment ol Debt Service
Reserve for Inventory of Supplies

Unrestricted:
Unreserved

[otal Net Position

Folal Liabifities. Delferred [nlTows of Resources and Net Position

EXHIBIT A-L
{Page 2 0f2)

2018 2017
485,077 599.081
254,552 152301

54.367 53,005
168.382 217,043
802,427 769.860
298,959 304.076

2,063,764 2,096,266
12,954,013 7.864,35
25.375.233
11,640,000 11,230,000

2.031.382 1,600,000
52,000,628 20694351

1.185.280 1189516

9.200.978

15.081.512 18.575.176
18.900 451 25,296,796
35.176.243 54.262.466
491325719 504,143,955
999,775 400,000
192325494  504.543.955

581.566.129

381.597.038

J10. 144 102.989
9,805.387 371344
363.218 382.609
17,746,959 9,980,509
28,327,708 11.337.851
9,509,672 - 9,067,720
37,293,188 37293188
1.340,640 1276913
{30.139.32-1) (24.930,503)

18.004,176

22707318

615,642,207

627,898,013

The accompanying Notes 1o the Financtal Statements are an integral part ol this Slatement.
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXFENSES AND CHANGES

IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Operating Revenues:
Marine Direct
Marine Related
Other
Grant Revenue

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
General Operating
Repairs & Maintenance
General & Administrative
Grant Expenses

Total Operating Expenses
Qperating Income Before Other Operating Expenses

Other Operating Expenses:
Depreciation

Total Other Operating Expenses
Operating Income/(Loss) After Other Operating Expenses

Nonoperating Revenues/{Expenses):
Interest on Investments & Deposits
Insurance Proceeds
Federal Subsidy Revenue
(Gain/fLoss) on Sale of Assets
Amwrtization Gain on Refunding of Debt
Amoriization of Bond Discount on Refunding
Amortization of Bond Premium
Net Change in Developers' Escrow
[Inrealized CGain/(Loss) on Investment
Cost of Bond Issuance Expenses
Interest Expense

Net Nonoperating Revenue/{Expenses}

Net [neomef(Loss) Befare Contributions and Transfers

EXHIBIT A-2
(Page [ 0f 2)

2018 2017
$20,848,264 22,114,995
2,413,962 2,508,538
291,093 475,113
3.193.957 7,683,862
26,747,276 32,782,508
12,416,933 14,651,902
1,172,998 1,225,458
6,235,529 7,241,448
3,193,957 7,683,862
23,019,417 30,802,670
3,727,859 1.979.838
8,057,304 5,812,244
8,057,304 5,812,244
(4.329,445) {3,832,406)
3,461,397 338.919
435,016
2,970,692 3.027.503
(¥9.039)
17.391 17,391
(8.972) {8.972)
i.178,236
(165,957} (284.952)
650.357 495,392
{435.096) {1,144,096)
(25.921.429) (14,810,339}
{18.253.381) (12.032,997)

{22.582.826)

(15,865.403)

I he accompanying Notes 1o the Financial Statements are an integral part of this Statentent.



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN NET POSITION

' FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2018 AND 2017

Operating Transfers To/ From the State of New Jersey/Other:

Debt Service Aid

Camden City PILOT Revenues
Camden City PILOT Expenditures
Camden County PILOT Revenues
Camden County PILOT Expenditures
Safem PILOT Revenues

Salem PILOT Expenditures
Paulsboro PILOT Revenues
Paulsboro PILOT Expenditures
Gloucester County PILOT Revenues
Gloucester County PILOT Expenditures
Change in Inventory of Supplies

Total Operating Transfers

Net Income/(L.oss) Before Contributions
Additions To Capital Contributions

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning of Year

Net Position - End of Year

2018

EXHIBIT A-2
(Page 2 of 2)

2017
17,650,000 17,650,000
4,060,000 4,000,000
(4,000,000) (4,060,000)
419,000 419,000
{419,000} (419,000)
38,224 31,224
(31,224 (31,224)
500,000 500,000
(500,000) (500,000}
150,000 150,000
(150,000) (150,000}
63,727 51,459
17,713,727 17.701,459
(4,869,099) 1,836,056
165,957 456,485
{(4,703,142) 2,292,541
22,707,318 20,414,777
$18,004,176 22,707,318

'he accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this Statement.
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EXHIBIT A-3

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Capital & Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

(Page | of 2}
SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
_ 2018 2017
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers $36,570,378 33,118,792
Interest Receipts 238,950 141,554
Payments to Employees (5,608,356) (5,895,004)
Payments for Employee Benefits (5,277,223) (5,190,578)
Payments to Suppliers 13,583,638 {18,525,923)
Net Cash Provided/(Used} by Operating Activities 39,507,387 3,648,841
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:
Developers' Escrow Refunds ' {165,957 (284,952).
Net Cash Provided/{(Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities {165,957) {284,952)
Cash Flows From Capital & Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition & Construction of Capital Assets (114,593,153) 446,918
Federal Interest Subsidy 2,970,692 3,027,503
Insurance Proceeds 435,016
Wet Proceeds Received from Bonding 271,149,473
Bond Issuance Expenses (435,096} {1,144,096)
Interest Paid on Revenue Bonds (20,696,935} (13,504,519}
Principal Paid on Revenue Bonds (11,230,000} {11,315,000)
State Aid for Debt Service 14,214,536 16,828,434
Camden City PILOT Revenues 4,000,000 4,000,000
Camden City PILOT Payments (4,000,000) {4,000,000)
Camden County PILOT Revenues 419,000 419,000
Camden County PILOT Payment (419,000) (419,000}
Paulsbore PILOT Revenues 500,000 500,000
Paulsboro PILOT Expenditures (500,000) (500,000)
Gloucester County PILOT Revenues 150,000 156,000
Gloucester County PILOT Payment {150,000) (150,000)
Salem PILOT Revenues 31,224 31,224
Salem PILOT Payment {31,224) (31,224)

{129,769,956)

265,923,779

Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investment 650,357 495,592
Interest & Dividends 3,461,397 338,919
Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Lnvesting Activities 4,111,754 334,511

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statenients are an integral part of this Statement.



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

. EXHIBIT A-3
(Page 2 0f 2)

2018 2017
Net [ncrease/{Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (86.316,772) 270,122,179
Balances - Beginning of Year 325,147,063 55,024,884
Balances - End of Year $238.830.291 325,147,063

Reconciliation of Operating Income/(Loss) to Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities:

Operating Income/(Loss) ($4,329,445)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating [ncome/{Loss) to Net Cash Provided/(Used)
by Operating Activities:

Operating Activities:

{$3.832,406)

Depreciation & Net Amortization 8,057,304 5,812,244
{Increase)}/Decrease in Accounts Receivable, Net 10,029,297 {331.514)
{Increase)/Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 32,755 809,352
Increasef(Decrease) in Accounts Payable 354,920 1,329,839
Increase/(Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities (48,661) 3,733
Increase/{Decrease) in Contracts Payable 25,375,233 (1,231,944)
Increase/(Decrease) in Early Retirement Payable {4,236) (276)
Increase/(Decrease) in Service Arrangements 7.155 (209.031)
Increase/{Decrease) in Uncarned Lease Revenue (%,200,9738) 725,404
Increase/{Decrease) in Unrealized Rental Income 9,234,043 (208,440)
Total Adjustments ‘ ' 43,836,832 6,699,367

Net Cash Provided/{Used) by Operating Activities $39,507.387 2,866,961

the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this Statement.
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the South Jersey Port Corporation have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB).

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the South Jersey Port Corporation is determined
by its measurement focus. The transactions of the Corporation are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets, deferred outflow of resources and
liabilities, deferred inflow of resources associated with the operations are included on the statement of net
position. Net position (i.e., total assets and deferred outflow of resources net of total liabilities and deferred
inflow of resources) is segregated into net investment in capital assets; restricted for capital activity;
restricted for debt service; and unrestricted components.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Principles

Adopted Accounting Pronouncements:
The following GASB Statements became effective for the year ended December 31, 2018:

Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-employment Benefits Other than Pensions.
This statement replaces the requirements of GASB 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, Statement 57, OPEB
Measurements by Agency Employers and Agent Multi-Employer Plans, for OPEB Statement 74,
Financial Reporting for Post-employment Benefit Plan Other Than Pension Plans, establishes new
accounting and financial reporting requirements for OPEB Plans. The adoption of this statement did have
an impact on the Corporation’s financial statements,

Statement 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units — an amendment of GASB Statement
14, The objective of this statement is to improve financial reporting by clarifying the financial statement
presentation requirements for certain component units. This statement amends the blending requirements
established in paragraph 53 of statement 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended. The adoption
of this statement had no impact on the Corporation’s financial statements.

Statement 81, frrevocable Split-Interest Agreements, The objective of this statement is to improve
accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements by providing recogn ition
and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the
agreement. The adoption of this statement had no impact on the Corporation’s financial statements.

Statement 82, Pension Issues — an amendment of GASB Statement 67, 68 and 73. The objective of this
statement is to address certain issues that have been raised with respect to Statement 67, Financial
Reporting for Pension Plans, Statement 68, dccounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and
Statement 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and Related Assets that are not within
the Scope of GASB Statement 68 and Amendment to Certain Provisions of GASB Statement 67 and 68.
The adoption of this statement had no impact on the Corporation’s financial statements.
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):
Statement 85, Owmibus 2017. This statement provides guidance that addresses several different

accounting and financial reporting issues identified during the implementation and application of other
GASB pronouncements. The adoption of this statement had no impact on the Corporation’s financial

statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

The GASB has issued the following statements which will become effective in future fiscal years:

Statement 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. An asset retirement obligation is a legally
enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. Statement 83 establishes
guidance for determining the timing and pattern of recognition for fiabilities and corresponding deferred
outflow of resources related to such obligations. The requirements of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 30, 20[8. Management does not expect this statement to have a
material impact on the Corporation’s financial statements.

Statement 84, Fiduciary Activities. The statement intends to improve guidance regarding the
identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how
those activities should be reported. To that end, Statement 84 establishes criteria for identifying
fiduciary activities of all state and local governments and clarifies whether and how business-type
activities should report their fiduciary activities. Statement 84 is effective for the reporting period
beginning after December 31, 2018. Management does not expect this statement to have a material
impact on the Corporation’s financial statements.

Statement 86, dccounting for Certain Debt Extinguishment. Statement 86 provides guidance for
transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing resources, that is,
resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt, are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole
purpose of extinguishing debt. Statement 86 is effective for the period beginning after June 15, 2017.
Management does not expect this statement to have a material impact on the School District’s financial
statements. Statement 87, Leases. Statement 87 establishes single approach to accounting for and
reporting leases by state and local governments, The GASB based the new standard on the principle that
leases are financing the right to use an underlying asset. Statement 87 is effective for the reporting period
beginning after December 15, 2019. Management does not expect this statement to have a material
impact on the Corporation’s financial statements.

Statement 87, Leases. The statement will increase the usefulness of governments’ financial
statements by requiring reporting of certain lease liabilities that currently are not reported. It will
enhance comparability of the financial statements among governments by requiring lessees and
lessors to report leases under a single model. Also, the statement will enhance the decision-
usefulness of the information provided to financial statement users by requiring notes to financial
statements related to the timing, significance, and purpose of a government’s leasing
arrangements. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning
after December 15. 2019. Management does not expect this statement to have a material impact on the
Corporation’s financial statements. '



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):

Statement 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowing and Direct
Placement. The statement will improve financial reporting users of financial statements with
essential information that currently is not consistently provided. In addition, information about
resources to liquidate debt and risks associated with changes in terms associated with debt will
be disclosed. As a result, users will have better information to understand the effects of debt on a
government's future resource flows. The requirements of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Management does not expect this statement to have
a material impact on the Corporation’s financial statements.

Statement 89, dccounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period.
This statement will improve financial reporting by providing users of financial statements with
more relevant information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period.
The resulting information also will enhance the comparability of information about capital assets
and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period for both governmental activities and business-
type activities. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2019. Management has not yet determined the potential impact on the
Corporation’s financial statements.

Reporting Entity:

The South Jersey Port Corporation was created by the "South Jersey Port Corporation Act, N.JSA4
12:114", as an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey. The Act conferred upon the Corporation the
powers to establish, acquire, construct, rehabilitate, improve, operate and maintain marine terminals in
the South Jersey Port district, which includes Mercer, Burlington, Camden, Gloucester, Salem,
Cumberiand and Cape May counties. :

The South Jersey Port Corporation is a component unit of the State of New Jersey as described in

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14 due to the existence of the above stated
act, NJ.S.A.12: 114. These financial statements would be either blended or discreetly presented as part

of the State of New Jersey’s financial statements if the State reported using generally accepted

accounting principles applicable to governmental entities.

The operations of the Port are under the directorship of an eleven-member board. The Governor of the
State appoints members for a term of five years. The day-to-day operations of the Port are under the
administration of the Executive Director with approximately 101 full time employees and 12 part time
employees.

The primary criterion for including activities within the Corporation’s reporting entity, as set forth in
Section 2100 of the GASB  Coudification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards, is whether:
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):

The organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name);

The Corporation holds the corporate powers of the organization;

The Governor appoints a voting majority of the organization's board;

The Corporation is able to impose its will on the organization;

The organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the Corporation;
There is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the Corporation.

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the Corporation has no component units.

Aceounting Policies and Basis of Presentation

a)

b)

d)

Basis of Accounting - The basic financial statements of the South Jersey Port Corporation
have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Corporation considers
all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with maturity of one year or less to be cash
equivalents.

Investment in Property, Plant and Equipment — Investment in Property, Plant and
Equipment is stated at cost, which generally includes net capitalized interest expense (See
Note 5) as well as professional fees incurred during the construction period.

Replacements of Property, Plant and Equipment are recorded at cost. Related costs and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss on disposition
is either credited or charged to nonoperating revenues or expenses.

Depreciation and amortization are provided using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets (See Note 5).

Marine Terminal Revenue Bond Resolution
The Corporation is subject to the provisions and restrictions of the Marine Terminal Revenue
Bond Resolution adopted November 8, 2007, January 29, 2009, December 30, 2009, October

17, 2012, September 29, 2016 and November 16, 2017. The revenues generated by
operations are to be distributed monthly based upon the following priorities:

[) Operating Account - 1/12 of the total appropriated for operating expenses in the
annual budget for the current calendar year.

-28 -



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):

2

- 3)

4)

5)

6)

The following is a summary of the functions and activities or each account created by the Bond

Resolution:

Debt Service Account - such amount necessary to increase the retained earnings to
equal the Aggregate Debt Service Requirement, (Interest and principal on the bonds
to accrue to the next interest payment date),

Debt Reserve Account - such amount necessary to increase the retained earnings to
equal the Debt Reserve Requirement. -

Maintenance Reserve Account - such amount necessary to increase the retained
earnings to equal the Maintenance Reserve Fund Requirement, which is the amount,
budgeted for major renewals, repairs or replacement,

Tax Reserve Account - such amount to increase the balance in the Payment Account
to equal the Property Tax Reserve and then such amount to increase the balance in
the Reserve Account to equal the tax payments for the current year.

General Reserve Account - such amount that remains after all previously
mentioned requirements.

Operating Account

Purpose - to account for all operating revenues and expenditures of the Corporation.

Section 711 of the Bond Resolution states that on or before November 15 in each year, the Corporation
shali complete a review of its financial condition for the purpose of estimating whether the rates, rents,
fees, charges and other income and receipts from operating the Marine Terminals including investment
income wil} be sufficient to provide for all of the payments and to meet all of the following requirements:

{(a) Operating Expenses during the calendar year, including reserves therefore, provided for in
the Annual Budget for such year;

(b) An amount equal to the Agpregate Debt Service for such calendar year;

(c) The amount, if any, to be paid during such calendar year into the Debt Reserve Account;

(d) The amount to be paid during such calendar year into the Maintenance Reserve Account to
the extent funds are available; and

(e) All other charges or liens whatsoever to be paid out of revenues during such calendar year
and, to the extent not otherwise provided for, all amounts payable on Subordinated Debt.

.70 .



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):

Provided, however, in no event shall such rates, rents, fees and charges in any calendar year be less than
those sufficient to provide Net Revenues in such year at least equal to 1.10 times the Aggregate Debt
Service for such year. The Bond Resolution further states that if the Corporation determines that such
revenues may not be sufficient to provide such payments plus principal and interest due or accrued on
Consulting Engineers to make a study for the purpose of recommending a schedule of rates, fees and
charges for the Marine Terminals which, in the opinion of the Corporation or the Consulting Engineers,
will cause sufficient revenues to be collected in the following calendar year to provide funds for all such
payments and will cause additional revenues to be collected in such following and Iater calendar years
sufficient to restore the amount of such deficiency at the earliest “practicable time.

Debt Service Account
Purpose - payment of principal and interest on Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds.

Debt Service payments for 2018 included $11,230,000 for principal and $20,696,935 for interest. 2017
included $11,315,000 for principal and $13,377,005 for interest. The funds to pay down the debt service
were provided from debt service accounts within the Construction Fund for 2018 and 2017.

Purpose - to provide necessai‘y funds to meet debt service obligations should revenues be insufficient.
N.LS.A.12:114-14 provides the following:

"In order to assure the maintenance of the maximum Debt Service Reserve in the South Jjersey Port
Corporation Reserve Fund, there shall be annually appropriated and paid to the Corporation fof deposit in
said fund, such sum, if any, as shall be certified by the Chairman of the Corporation to the Governor as
necessary to restore said fund to an amount equal to the maximum Debt Service Reserve. The Chairman
shall annually, on or before December 1, make and deliver to the Governor his certificate stating the sum,
if any, required to restore said fund to the amount aforesaid, and the sum or sums so certified shall be
appropriated and paid to the Corporation during the then current State Fiscal Year".

The Chairman certified to the Governor that the P(Srt Corporation anticipated it would require a State
appropriation in this fund in the amount of $17.650.000. -

The Reserve Fund Requirement, as established under the terms of the Marine Terminal Bond Resolution
dated November 8, 2007, is the highest amount of aggregate debt service payable in any succeeding year,
which amount is $37,293,188. “

Maintenance Reserve Account

Purpose - to provide funds for major renewals, repairs or replacements essential to restore or prevent
physical damage to, or to prevent loss of revenues from the Marine Terminals.

Section 506 of the Bond Resolution, as amended by Section 302 of the Supplemental Bond Resolution,
specified that operating revenues shall be deposited to the Maintenance Reserve Account only after
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMRBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued):
Maintenance Reserve Account (continued):

meeting the necessary payments to the Operating Account, Debt Service Account, Debt Reserve Account
and Rebate Account.

Funds were provided from operating revenue during the years 2018 and 2017 of $-0- and $482,919
respectively.

Property Reserve Account

Purpose is to accumulate proceeds from the sale of land or other property and to use such funds for
projects involving the acquisition of real or personal property.

Tax Reserve Account

Purpose - for the payments of amounts due to local governments in lieu of property taxes as required by
N.J.8.12:114-20.

N.J.S.A.12:114-20(b) provides the following:

"To the end that counties and municipalities may not suffer undue loss of future tax revenue by reason of
the acquisition of real property therein by the Corporation, the Corporation is hereby authorized,
empowered and directed to enter into agreement or agreements (herein-after called 'tax agreements’) with
any county or municipality...... whereby it will undertake to pay a fair and reasonable'sum or sums...... to
compensate the said county or municipality for any loss of such tax revenue by reason of the acquisition
of any such property by the Corporation....". N.J.S.4.12:114-20 provides the following:

"In order to assure provision of the property tax reserve in said fund, there shall be annually
appropriated and paid to the Corporation for deposit in said-fund, such sums, if any, as shall
be certified by the Chairman of the Corporation to the Governor as then necessary to provide
in said fund an amount equal to the property tax reserve. The Chairman shall annually on or
before December 1 make and deliver to the Governor his certificate stating the sum if any
needed to provide in said fund the amount of the property tax reserve as of said date, and the
sum or sums so certified shall be appropriated and paid to the Corporation during the then
current fiscal year".

During both 2018 and 2017 the State of New Jersey paid to the Corporation $4,000,000 for Camden City,
$419,000 for Camden County, $500,000 for Paulsboro Township, $150,000 for Gloucester County,
$31,224 for Salem City to provide sufficient funds for tax payments,
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):

General Reserve Account

Purpose - to accumulate excess revenues, which may subsequently be transferred to other funds to mest
deficiencies or for the repayment to the State, amounts paid in discharge of its obligations under the Act,
or for any other lawful purpose in connection with the Marine Terminals.

To this date, operating revenues have not been sufficient to provide funds for the General Reserve
Account.

Construction Account

Purpose is to account for the cost of facilities and maintain a record of the Marine Terminal Revenue
Bonds.

The South Jersey Port Corporation has issued various bonds as outlined in Note 7 for the improvement of
the port facilities, debt reserve funds and capitalized interest. During 2009 Series O Bonds in the amount
of $25,885,000 and Series P Bonds in the amount of $157,880,000. In 2012 Series Q Bonds in the
amount of $60,060,000 and Series R in the amount of $16,050,000 were issued to refund Series Bonds K
and L. In 2016 Series S bonds were issued to refund Series Bonds N and O. During 2017 Series A Bonds
in the amount of $23,860,000 and Series B Bonds in the amount of $23 1,140,000 were issued and these
funds are also still available for approved projects.

With certain exceptions, existing arbitrate iaws require a rebate to the federal government of all earnings
on the investment of the proceeds of tax-exempt obligations, issued after September I, 1986, in excess of
the yield on such obligations and any income earned on such excess. A portion of past or future interest
earnings may be subject to federal rebate. An arbitrage calculation analysis has been performed through.
January 25, 2019 for such required tax-exempt obligations and it has been determined that no liability is
due to the federal government at this time.

Note 2. Cash & Cash Equivalents

The Corporation is governed by the deposit and investment limitations of New Jersey state law. The
Deposits and Investments held at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017
: Carrying Carrying
Type Value ‘ Value
Deposits: :
Demand Deposits $ 82.851,129 $316,518,512
Total Deposits $ 82,851,129 $316,518,512
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
2. Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued):

Reconciliation of Statement of Net Position:

Current:
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 9,613,221 $ 11,345,641
Restricted Assets: _ ‘
Cash & Cash Equivalents 72,937,908 305,172,871
Total § 82,851,120 $316,518,512
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Corporation’s deposits may not
be returned. The Corporation does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Corporation’s bank balance of $82,073,749 and $$316,770,636
respectively, was insured or collateralized as follows:

2018 2017
Insured $ 1,095840 § 1,292,998
Collaterized in the Corporation’s Name
- Under GUDPA (See Note 3) 80,586,645 315,093,324
Collaterized not in the Corporation’s Name
(New Jersey Cash Management Fund) ‘ 391.264 384,314
Total ' $ 82,073,749 $316,770.636

Note 3. Invesiments

A. Custoedial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is a risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Corporation will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Investment securities are exposed to
custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the
Corporation, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty's trust department or
agent but not in Corporation's name. All of the Corporation's investments are held in the name of
the Corporation and are collateralized by GUDPA.
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Note 3. Investments (continued):

B.

Investment Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates that will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. The Corporation has no formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing

interest rates. Maturities of investments held at December 31, 2018 and 2017, are provided in
the above schedule.

Investment Credit Risk

The Corporation has no investment policy that limits its investment choices other than the
limitation of state law as follows:

» Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by
the United States of America;

* Government money market mutual fiinds;

* Any obligation that a federal agency or federal instrumentality has issued in accordance
with an act of Congress, which security has a maturity date not greater than 397 days from
the date of purchase, provided that such obligations bear a fixed rate of interest not

‘dependent on any index or other external factor;

e Bonds or other obligations of the Corporation or bonds or other obligations of the local
unit or units within which the Corporation is located;

» Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date of not more than 397 days from the date
of purchase, approved by the Division of Investment in the Department of Treasury for
investment by the Corporation;

* Local Government investment pools;

* Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund established pursuant to
section 1 of P.L.. 1977, ¢.281; or

* Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities with certain limitations.

(a) the underlying securities are pcrmxrted investments pu:suant to paragraphs (1)
and {3) of subscctlon A herein;

(b) the custody of collateral is transierred to a third party;

{¢) the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;
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Note 3. Investments (continued):

C. Investment Credit Risk (continued):

(d) the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository as defined in
section 1 of P,L. 1970, ¢. 236 (C.17:9-41); and

(e) a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and security of
collateral.

¢ Any investment instruments in which the security is not physically held by the Cbrporation
shall be covered by a third party custodial agreement which shall provide for the designation
of such investments in the name of the Corporation and prevent unauthorized use of such
investments;

Purchase of investment securities shall be executed by the “delivery versus payment"
method to ensure that securities are either received by the Corporation or a third party
custodian prior to or upon the release of the Corporation's funds. '

Any investments not purchased and redeemed directly from the issuer, government money
market mutual fund, local government investment pool, or the State of New Jersey Cash
Management Fund, shall be purchased and deemed through the use of a national or State
bank located within this State or through a broker-dealer which, at the time of purchase or
redemption, has been registered continuously for a period of at least two years pursuant to
section 9 of P.L.1967, c. 93 (C.49:3-56) and has at least $25 million in capital stock (or
equivalent capitalization if not a corporation), surplus reserves for contingencies and
undivided profits, or through a securities dealer who makes primary markets in U.S.
Government securities and reports daily to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York its
position in and borrowing on such U.S. Government securities.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Corporation had the following investments and

maturities: 7 :
' 2018

Iavestment Maturities Rating Fair Value
US Treasury Notes 1/1/19 N/A $ 9,990,400
Federal Home Loan Medium Term Notes  4/15/19 AA+ 24,906,750
US Treasury Notes 6/30/19 N/A 6,352,000
US Treasury Notes 7/31/19 N/A 24,829,000
US Treasury Notes 10/15/19 N/A 24,684,500
US Treasury Notes 12415719 N/A 6,323,776
Federal Home Loan Discount Notes 21120 N/A 24,883,000
Tennessee Valley Authority Series A '

Notes 3/15/20 AA+ 4,683,000
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Nete 3. Investments (continued):

C. Investment Credit Risk (continued):

2018
Investment : Maturities Rating Fair Value
US Treasury Notes 3/15/20 N/A § 19,918,000
US Treasury Notes 6/30/20 N/A 9,108,736
~ Total _ | $155.979.162
. 2017
Investment Maturities Rating Fair Value
Federal Home Loan Discount Notes 6/30/18 N/A 8.628.551
Total $ 8628551

Note 4. Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA)

The Corporation deposited cash in 2018 and 2017 with an approved public fund depository qualified
under the provisions of the Government Unit Deposit Protection Act.

The Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act P.L. 1970, Chapter 236, was passed to afford protection
against bankruptcy or default by a depository. C.17:9-42 provides that no governmental unit shall
deposit funds in a public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with this act. C.17:9-42
provides that every public depository having public funds on deposit shall, as security for such deposits,
matintain eligible collateral having a market value at least equal to either (1) 5% of the average daily
balance of collected public funds on deposit during the 6 month period ending on the next preceding
valuation date (June 30 or December 31) or (2) at the election of the depository, at least equal to 5% of
the average balance of collected public funds on deposit on the first, eighth, fifteenth, and twenty-second
. days of each month in the 6 month period ending on the next preceding valuation date (June 30 or
December 31). No public depository shall be required to maintain any eligible collateral pursuant to this
act as security for any deposit or deposits of any governmental unit to the extent such deposits are
insured by F.D.1.C. or any other U.S, agency which insures public depository funds.
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Note 4. Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA) (continued):

No public depository shall at any time receive and hold on deposit for any period in excess of 15 days
public funds of a governmental unit(s) which, in the aggregate, exceed 75% of the capital funds of the
depository, unless such depository shall, in addition to the security required to be maintained under the
paragraph above, secure such excess by eligible collateral with a market value at least equal to 100% of
such excess. :

In the event of a default, the Commissioner of Banking within 20 days after the default occurrence shall
ascertain the amount of public funds on deposit in the defaulting depository and the amounts covered by
federal deposit insurance and certify the amounts to each affected governmental unit. Within 10 days
after receipt of this certification, each unit shall furnish to the Commissioner verified statements of its
public deposits. The Commissioner shall ascertain the amount derived or to be derived from the
liquidation of the collateral maintained by the defaulting depository and shall distribute such proceeds
pro rata among the governmental units to satisfy the net deposit liabilities to such units.

If the proceeds of the sale of the collateral are insufficient to pay in full the liability to all affected
governmental units, the Commissioner shall assess the deficiency against all other public depositories
having public funds on deposit determined by a formula determined by law. All sums collected by the
Commissioner shall be paid to the governmental units having deposits in the defaulting depository in the
proportion that the net deposit liability to each such governmental unit bears to the aggregate of the net
deposit liabilities to all such governmental units.

All public depositories are required to furnish information and reports dealing with public funds on
deposit every six months, June 30th and December 31st, with the Commissioner of Banking, Any public
depository which refuses or neglects to give any information so requested may be excluded by the
Commissioner from the right to receive public funds for deposit until such time as the Commissioner
shall acknowledge that such depository has furnished the information requested.

Upon review and approval of the Certification Statement that the public depository complies with
statutory requirements, the Commissioner issues forms approving the bank as a municipal depository.
The Corporation should request copies of these approval forms semiannually to assure that all
depositories are complying with requirements.
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Note 5. Property, Plant & Equipment

The following is a summary of property, plant and equipment at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:

Balance Balance
December 31, Reclass/ December 31,
2017 Additions Deletions Adjustments 2018
Land $ 19,177,117 . $ 19,177,117
Buildings &
Improvements 55,147,566 1,809,612 56,957,178
Land
Improvements 257,224,976 21,272,102 5,906,454 284,403,532
Equipment 25,573,354 1,224,499 204,604 27,002,457
Engineering &
Other 7,203,729 7,203,729
Financing Costs 9,159,938 9,159,938
Subtotal 373,486,680 22,496,601 - 7,920,670 403,903,951
Less: Accumulated
Depreciation .
Aumortization (120,309,443) (8,093,052) . ‘ (128,402,495)
Subtotal 253,177,237 14,403,549 - 7,920,670 275,501,456
Construction in
Prqgress 1,867.968 67,814,232 - (7,920,670) 61,761,530
Total ' $255,045,205  $82,217,781 - - $337,262,986
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Note 5. Property, Plant & Equipment (continued):

Balance Balance
December 31, Reclass/ December 3%,
2016 Additions Deletions  Adjustments 2017

Land $ 18,235317 941,800 $ 19,177,117
Buildings & ‘
Improvements 48,926,616 (990,356) 7,211,306 55,147,566
Land
Improvements 120,076,792 435,267 136,712,917 257,224,976
Equiprent 25,311,580 221,559 (10,302) 50,517 25,573,354
Engineering &
Other 7,203,729 7,203,729
Financing Costs 9,159,938 9,159,938
Subtotal 228,913,972 656,826 (1,000,658) 144,916,540 373,486,680
Less: Accumulated
Depreciation :
Amortization (115,383,817)  (5,827,245) 201,619 (120,309,443)
Subtotal 113,530,155 {5,170,419) (99,039) 144,916,540 253,177,237
Construction in J
Progress 146,887,594 7,580,776 - (152,600,402) 1,867,963
Total $260,417,749 § 2,410,357 $ (99,039) § (7,683,862) $255,045,205

Note 6. Pension Plan
Description of System and Vesting

All eligible authority employees participate in the contributory defined benefit public employee
retirement system established by state statute. The Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) is
sponsored and administered by the State of New Jersey and considered a cost-sharing multiple employer
plan.

The Public Employees’ Retirement System was established in January, 1955 under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantiaily all full time
employees of the State or any county, municipality, school district or public agency provided the
employee is not a member of another State-administered retirement system. Membership is mandatory
for such employees and vesting occurs after 8 to 10 years of service and 235 years for health care
coverage.
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Neote 6. Pension Plan (continued):

At December 31, 2018 the Corporation reported a liability of $15,883,939 for its proportionate share of
the net pension liability as measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Corporation elected
to record $802,427 as current pension liability from the above amount. The Corporation’s proportion of
the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Corporation’s long — term share of contributions
to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2018, the Corporation’s proportion was .080672% which decreased slightly by
.002% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
PERS and additions to/deductions from PERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions} are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
are reported at fair value,

For the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Corporation recognized pension expense of
$1,463,507 and $2,054,117 respectively. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Corporation reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the following
sources:

December 31, 2018 December 31,2017
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Qutflow of Inflow of Qutflow of Inflow of
Resources Resources Resources Resources
Difference Between Expected
and Actual Experience _ $ 302,909 81,903 $ 455,509
Changes of Assumptions 2,617,410 5,078,839 3,897,358 3,883,070

Net Difference Between Projected

and Actual Earnings on Pension

Plan Investments 148,992 131,727
Changes in Proportion and Differences

Between Authority Contributions and

Proportionate Share of Contributions 2,243,205 694,810 3,133,191 413326
Authority Contributions Subsequent to

The Measurement Date - - - -

$5,163,524 $6,004,544 $7.617.785 $4.296,396

$5,163,524 and $$7.617,785 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting
from Corporation contributions subsequent to the measurement date will he recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. Other amounts
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Note 6. Pension Plan (continued):

reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will
be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended November 30, 2018 Year Ended November 30, 2017
2019 $ (33,821) 2018 $ 606,093
2020 (33,821) 2019 606,093
2021 (33,821) 2020 606,093
2022 (33,821) 2021 606,093
2023 (33,821) 2022 606,093
’I‘hereaﬁ:er (671.914) Thereafter 250,924 .
Total $ (841.020) Total $3.321.389

Additional Information

Collective balances at November.BO; 2018 and 2017 as follows:

2018 2017
Collective deferred outflows of resources $ 4,684,852,302 $ 6,424,455,842
Collective deferred inflows of resources 5,646,736,226 5,700,625,981
Collective net pension liability $ 19,689,501,539 $ 23,278,401,588
District’s Proportion ‘ 08067212% .08310294%

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2018 and 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement as follows:

2018 2017
Inflation Rate » 2.25% Inflation Rate 2.25%
‘Salary Increases: 1.65-4.15% Salary Increases: 1.65-4.15%
Through 2026 Based on Age Through 2026 Based on Age
Thereafter 265-5.15% Thereafter 2.65-5.15%
Based on Age Based on Age

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July I, 2011 to June 30, 2014. It is likely that future experience will not
exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these .
assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. The more the experience
deviates, the larger the impact on future financial statements.

247 -



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 6. Pension Plan (continued):

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments is
determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments
and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. Best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as
of June 30, 2018 and 2017 are summarized in the following tables:

2018 Long-Term
Expecied Real

2018 Target Rate of

Asset Class Allocation Return
Risk Mitigation Strategies 5.00% 5.51%
Cash Equivalents 5.50% 1.60%
U.S. Treasuries 3.00% 1.87%
Investment Grade Credit 10.00% 3.78%
Public High Yield 2.50% 6.82%
Global Diversified Credit 5.00% 7.10%
Credit Oriented Hedge Funds 1.00% 6.60%
Debt Related Private Equity 2.00% 10.63%
Debt Related Real Estate 1.00% 6.61%
Private Real Asset 2.50% 11.83%
Equity Related Real Estate 6.25% 9.23%
- U.S. Equity 30.00% 8.19%
Non-U.S. Develop Markets Equity 11.50% 9.00%
Emerging Markets Equity 6.50% [1.64%
Buyouts/Venture Capital 8.25% 13.08%

- 42



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 6. Pension Plan (continued):

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return (continued):
2017 Long-Term

Expected Real

2017 Target Rate of

Asset Class Allocation Return
Absolute Return/Risk Mitigation 5.00% 5.51%
Cash 5.50% 1.00%
U.S. Treasuries 3.00% 1.8\%
Investment Grade Credit 10.00% 3.78%
Public High Yield 2.50% 6.82%
Global Diversified Credit 5.00% 7.10%
Credit Oriented Hedge Funds 1.00% 6.06%
Debt Related Private Equity 2.00% 10.63%
Debt Related Real Estate 1.00% 6.61%
Private Real Assets 2.50% - 11.83%
Equity Related Real Estate 6.25% 9.23%
U.S. Equity 30.00% 8.19%
Non-U.S. Develop Markets Equity 11.50% 9.00%
Emerging Markets Equity 6.50% 11.64%
Buyouts/Venture Capital 8.25% 13.08%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.66% and 5.00% as of June 30, 2018
and 2017, respectively. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments of 7.00% as of June 30 2018 and 2017, respectively, and a municipal
bond rate of 3.87% and 3.58% as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, based on the Bond Buyer GO
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an
average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and
'that contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal
year. The State employer contribution 50% of the actuarially determined contributions and the local
employers contributed 100% of their actuarially determined contributions. Based .on those assumptions,
the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments
of current plan members through June 30, 2046. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments was applied to projected benefit payments through June 30, 2046, and the municipal bond
rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.
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Note 6. Pension Plan (continued):

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers as of June 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the
collective net pension liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage
point lower or i-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

2018

At Current .
At 1% Discount At 1%
Decrease (4.66%) Rate (5.66%) Increase (6.66%)

Corporation’s Proportionate
Share of Net Pension Liability  $ 19,705,104 $ 15,883,939 $12,700,435

2017
At Current
At 1% Discount At 1%
Decrease {4.00%) Rate (5.00%) Increase (6.00%)

Corporation’s Proportionate
Share of Net Pension Liability  $723,998,830 $ 19,345,036 $ 15,467,849

Members are eligible for retirement at age 60 with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/55th of
the average annual compensation for the highest three fiscal years’ compensation for cach year of
membership during years of creditable service. Early retirement is available to those under age 60 with
25 or more years of credited service. Anyone who retires early and is under age 55 receives retirement
benefits as calculated in the above-mentioned formula but at a reduced rate (one quarter of one percent
for each month the member lacks of attaining age 55).

The State of New Jersey, Department of Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly
available financial reports that include financial statements and required supplementary information for
PERS. The financial reports may be obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Department of the
Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, P.O. Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295.

Contribution Requirements

The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A.43:15A, Chapter 62, P.L. of 1994, Chapter 115, P.L. of {997
and N.J.S.A.18:66, and requires contributions by active members and contributing employers. Plan
member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation, PERS provide
for employee contributions of 7.34%, effective July 1, 2017 and increases to 7.50%, effective July I,
2018 of employees’ annual compensation as defined. Employers are required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate in PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for both
cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits and post-retirement medical premiums. The
South Jersey Port Corporation’s contributions to P.E.R.S. for the years ending December 31, 2018, 2017
and 2016 were $802,427, $715,011 and $541.887, respectively, equal to the required contributions for
cach year,
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Note 6. Pension Plan (continued):

The State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits issues a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. To obtain this additional
detailed information about the pension pian it is available in a separately issued State of New Jersey
Divisions of Pensions and Benefits financial report at hitp://www.nj. c,;ov/t:easmy/pemlons/gabb 68-

rpts.shtml.

Early Retirement Incentive Plan

In 2003 the State of New Jersey signed into Law the State Early Retirement Incentive (ERI) program as
Chapter 23, PL. 2002. The ERI has a provision that allows optional participation in the program by
certain State Autonomous Authorities. Participation is optional, as these organizations will have to bear
the cost of the incentives provided to their employees who retire. The Board of Directors of the South
Jersey Port Corporation adopted a resolution to allow its eligible employees to participate in the ERI
program. In 2002 four employees elected to participate in the ERI. In 2003 an additional four employees
elected to participate in the ERI. The liability to the Corporation is $1,185,280 as of December 31, 2018,

Payments for the liability will be spread over 30 years. Each consecutive year’s payment would increase
by 4.00%. All the payment schedules incorporate an annual percentage rate of interest equaling 8.25%.
The Port made its payment towards the ERI Program in 2018 and 2017 for $102,371 and $98,158
respectively, which included principal and interest.

The following is a summary of the Eariy Retirement Incentive Plan required payments for interest and
principal;

Year Prineipal Interest Total

2019 $ 8,680 97,786 106,466
2020 13,656 97,069 110,725
2021 19,211 95,943 115,154
2022 25,402 94,358 119,760
2023 32,238 92,262 124,550
2024 39,933 - 89,599 129,532
2025 : 48,409 86,304 134,713
2026 57,792 82,310 140,102
2027 68,164 77,542 145,706
2028 79,615 71,919 51,534
2029 : 92,244 65,351 157,595
2030 106,158 57,741 163,899
2031 121,472 48,983 170,455
2032 138,312 38,961 177,273
2033 156,814 27,550 184,364
2034 177,130 14.613 191,743
Total $1,185,280 $1,138,291 $2,323,571.
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 7. Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of long-term debt at December 31, 2018:

Princinal
PFrincinal

Initial . Date Original
Date of of Final Interest Issue Balance
issue Issue Maturity Rates Amount Qutstanding

Series 2009 O ‘ © 4.000%

Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds  01/29/09 01/01/19 5.875% 25,885,000 645,000

Series 2009 P 2.995%

Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds  12/30/09 01/01/40 7.365% 157,880,000 135,740,000

Series 2012 Q 3.000%

Marine Terminal Refunding Bonds 10/17/12 01/01/33 3.250% 60,060,000 41,520,000

Series 2012 R .

Marine Terminal Rgﬁmding Bonds 10/17/12 01/01/24 4.000% . 16,050,000 9,170,000

Series 2016 § 5.125%

Marine Terminal Refunding Bonds 09/29/16 01/01/39 5.875% 40,320,000 38,670,000

Series 2017 A

Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds  11/16/17 01/01/49 5.00% 23,860,000 23,860,000

Series 2017 B

Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds  11/16/17 01/0i/48 5.00% 231,140,000 231,140,000

Total $480,745.000
. Add: Unamortized Bond Premium 22,220,719

* Less: Current Maturities Included in Current Liabilities 11,640,000
Balance $491,325,719

The following table sets forth the amount required for payment of principal and intcrest duc on Serics N,
O, P, Q, R and S bonds {whether at maturity or by sinking fund redemption);

Year Principal Interest , Total

2019 ' $ 11,640,000 $ 25,653,188 $ 37,293,188
2020 11,995,000 25,135,337 37,130,337
2021 9,965,000 24,635,691 34,600,691
2022 10,350,000 24,163,377 34,513,377
2023 10,835,000 23,680,358 34,515,358
2024-2028 61,305,000 109,054,589 170,359,589
2029-2033 74.,880.000 90,092,617 164,972,617
2034-20638 02,875,000 65,890,982 158,765,982
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Note 7. Long-Term Debt (continued):

Year Principal Interest Total

2039-2043 85,250,000 38,267,782 123,517,782
2044-2048 90,700,000 17,016,750 107,716,750
2049 20,950,000 523.750 21,473,750
Total $480,745,000 $444,114.42] $924,850.421

a) On November 8, 2007, the Corporation issued $11,235,000 Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series
N. The Series N Bonds were issued to provide funds to (i) the implementation of certain capital projects
of the Corporation (the “2007 Projects™); (ii) fund a deposit to the debt reserve fund established under the

Bond Resolution and (iii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2007 Bonds. :

b) On January 29, 2009, the Corporation issued $25,885,000 in aggregate Marine Terminal Revenue
Bonds, Series O. The Series O Bonds consist of $19,770,000 Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series O-
1 (the “Series 2009 O-1 Bonds™), $915,000 Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 O-2 (the
“Series 2009 O-2 Bonds™), and $5,200,000 Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series O-3 (AMT) (the
“Series 2009 O-3 Bonds” and, together with the Series 2009 O-1 Bonds and the Series 2009 O-2 Bonds,
“Series 2009 Bonds”). The Series O Bonds were issued to provide funds to (i) fund the implementation
of certain capital projects of the Corporation; (ii) fund a deposit to the Debt Reserve Fund established
under the Bond Resolution; and (iii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2009 Bonds.

c) On December 30, 2009, the Corporation issued $157,880,000 in aggregate Marine Terminal Revenue
Bonds, Series P. The Series P Bonds consist of $4,925,000 Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series
2009 P-1 (Federally Taxable), $23,215,000 Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 P-2 (Tax-
Exempt Private Activity), and $129,740,000 Marine Terminal Revenue bonds, Series 2009 P-3 (Federally
Taxable). The Series P Bonds were issued to provide funds to (i) the 2009 Paulsboro Marine Terminal
Project; (ii) fund a deposit to the Debt Reserve Fund; (iii} fund capitalized interest on the Series 2009 P
Bonds through January 1, 2001; and (iv) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2009 P Bonds.

d) On October 17, 2012, the Corporation performed a partial current refunding of Marine Terminal
Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bonds Series K and L. The Corporation issued Series Q ($60,060,000)
Marine Terminal Refunding Bonds (Tax-Exempt) and Series R ($16,050,000) Marine Terminal Revenue
Refunding Bonds (Taxable). The proceeds of the Series 2012 Bonds, together with other funds, are
being used to (i) refund certain callable maturities of the 2002 Bonds; (ii) fund the required deposit to the
Debt Reserve Fund; and (iii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2012 Bonds.

¢) On September 29, 2016, the Corporation performed advance-refunding of Marine Terminal Revenue
Bonds Series N and O. The Corporation issued Series S-1 ($33,035,000) Marine Terminal Revenue and
Revenue Refunding Bonds and Series S-2 ($7,285,000) Marine Terminal Revenue Refunding Bonds
(AMT). A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2016 S-1 Bonds will be used to: (i) advance-refund the
Corporation’s Series N Bonds and (ii} advance-refund the Series 2009 O-1 and O-2 Bonds (Prior Tax-
Exempt Bonds). A portion of the proceeds of the 2016 S-2 Bonds will be used to currently refund the
Corporation’s Series 2003 M Bonds (Prior AMT Bonds and together with the Prior Tax-Exempt Bonds,
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Note 7. Long-Term Debt (continued):

the “Prior Bonds™). A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2016 Bonds will be deposited into the Project
Fund established under the Bond Resolution for purposes of funding the 2016 Capital Plan. A portion of
the proceeds of the Series 2016 Bonds, together with other available funds, will be deposited in the Debt
Reserve Fund in an amount sufficient to bring the balance in the Debt Reserve Fund to the Debt Reserve
Requirement. This current refunding was undertaken to obtain an economic gain (difference between the
present value of the debt service payments of the Refunded and Refunding Bonds) of $400,000.

f) On November 16, 2017, the Corporation issued $255,000,000 in Subordinated Marine Terminal
Revenue Bonds, Series 2017. The Series 2017 Bonds consist of $23,860,000 Subordinated Marine
Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A (Tax-Exempt), and $231,140,000 Subordinated Marine
- Terminal Revenue bonds, Series 2017b (AMT). The Series 2017 Bonds were issued to provide funds to
(i) pay the costs of various capital improvements and projects included in the Corporation’s capital plan,
(ii) make the required deposit into the Subordinated Debt Reserve Fund; (iii) fund capitalized interest on
the Series 2017 Bonds through January 1, 2019; and (iv) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2017
Bonds.

The following is a summary detailing the schedule of outstanding bonds by year, series and the annual
debt principal requirements for each:

~.3ERIES Q-3.....
Issue Annual [Interest
Year Principal Rate

2019 8§ 645,000 5.50
2020 ;
2021 .
2022 ‘ - -
2023 .
2024 -
2025 -
2026 .
2027 .
2028 .
2029 -
2030 . -
2031 ' -
2032 -
2033 -
2034 .
2035 -
2036 .
2037 -
2038 -
2039 -

T'otal $ 645,000

- 48 -



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 7. Long-Term Debt (continued):

e SERIES P-2..... «.SERIES P-3..... SERIES *p”
Issue Annual Interest Annual Interest Total
Year Principal  Rate Principal Rate Principal
2019 ' - 3,655,000 6.052 .3,655,000
2020 - 3,800,000 6.152 3,800,000
2021 - 3,955,000 6.252 3,955,000
2022 $4,115,000 5.750 - 4,115,000
2023 4,350,000 5.750 - 4,350,000
2024 1,055,000 5.750 - 1,055,000
2025 - ' - -
2026 - - -
2027 - - -
2028 - - -
2029 - 29,985,000 7.065 29,985,000
2030 - - -
2031 - . - -
2032 - - -
2033 - - -
2034 : - - -
2035 - - -
2036 - ' - -
2037 - - -
2038 - - -
2039 - - -
2040 - 84,825.000 7.365 84.825.000
Total §...9.520,000 $126,220,000 - $135,740,000

v ERIES Q... —....3ERIES R......
Issue Annual  Interest ~ Annual  Interest
Year . Principal Rate Principal  Rate
2019 $4,850,000 3.00 1,700,600 4,00
2020 5,000,000 3.00 1,750,000 4.00
2021 2,950,000 3.00 1,550,000 4.00
2022 3,050,000 3.00 [,600,000 4.00
2023 3,150,000 3.00 1,670,000 4.00
2024 950,000 3.00 Q00,000 4,00
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Note 7. Long-Term Debt (continued):

...... SERIES Q........ ... SERIES R.......
Issue Annual  [nterest Annual  [Iaterest
Year Principal Rate Principal  Rate

2025  $2,050,000 3.00 .
2026 2,160,000 3.00 -
2027 2,175,000 3.00 -
2028 2,245,000 3.00 -
2029 2,355,000 3.00 -
2030 2,475,000 3.00 -
2031 2,600,000 313 -
2032 2,713,000 313 -
2033 2,855,000 3.25 -

2034 -
20335 - -
2036 - -
2037 - -
2038 - -
2039 - -
2040 - -
Total 341,520,000 $.9,170,000

...... SERIES S$-1...... ....SERIES §-2..... Series S
Issue Annual  [Interest Annual  Interest Total
Year Principal Rate Principal Rate Principal
2019 $799,000 5.00 : 790,000
2020 670,000 5.00 775,000 5.00 1,445,000
2021 - 1,510,000 5.00 1,510,000
2022 . 1,585,000 5.00 1,585,000
2023 1,665,000 5.00 1,665,000
2024 1,750,000 5.00 1,750,000
2025 1,840,000 5.60 - 1,840,000
2026 1,930,000 5.00 - 1,930,000
2027 2,030,000 5.00 - 2,030,000
2028 2,130,000 5.00 - 2,130,000
2029 2,230,000 5.00 - 2,230,000
2030 2,360,000 5.00 - 2,360,000
2031 1,670,000 5.00 - 1,670,000
2032 1,755,000 3.50 - 1,755,000
2033 1,820,000 5.00 - 1,820,000
2034 1,915,000 3.00 - 1.915,000
2035 2,005,000 5.00 - 2,005,000
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Note 7. Long-Term Debt (continued):

...... SERIES 8-1...... .....SERIES 8-2..... Series S
Issue - Annual Interest Annual  Interest Total
Year Principal  Rate Principai  Rate Principal
2036 - $2,100,000 3.75 - 2,100,000
2037 2,185,000 5.00 -~ 2,185,000
2038 2,285,000  5.00 - 2,285,000
2039 1.670.000  5.00 - 1,670,000
Total ~ $31,385,000 $.7.285,000 $ 38,670,000
...... SERIES A...... ... SERIES B...... Grand

Issue Annual Interest Annual  Interest Total
Year Principal  Rate Principal  Rate * Principal
2019 - - 11,640,000
2020 - - 11,995,000
2021 - - ! 9,965,000
2022 - - 10,350,000
2023 - - 10,835,000
2024 - 2,890,000 5.00 11,090,000
2025 - 3,025,000 5.00 11,740,000
2026 - 3,180,000 5.00 12,255,000
2027 - 3,340,000 5.00 12,820,000
2028 - 3,505,000 5.00 13,400,000
2029 - 3,680,000 5.00 14,040,000
2030 - 3,865,000 5.00 14,740,000
2031 - 4,055,000 5.00 14,650,000
2032 - 4,260,000 5.00 15,360,000
2033 oo 4,470,000 5.00 16,090,000
2034 - 7,660,000 5.00 16,855,000
2035 - 8,045,000 5.00 17,680,000
2036 - 8,445,000 5.00 18,540,000
2037 - 8,870,000 5.00 19,430,000
2038 - 9,310,000 5.00 20,370,000
2039 - 9,780,000 5.00 20,645,000
2040 - 10,265,000 5.00 19,900,000
2041 - 14,180,000 5.00 14,180,000
2042 - 14,850,000 5.00 14,890,000
2043 - 15,635,000 5.00 15,635,000
2044 - 16,415,000  5.00 16,415,000
2045 - 17,235,000 5.00 17,235,000
2046 - 18,100,000 5.00 18,100,000
2047 - 19,000,000 5.00 19,000,000
2048 2,910,000 5.00 17,040,000 5.00 19,950,000
2049 20,950,000 5.00 - 20,950,000
Total  $23,860,000 $231,140,000 $480,745,000
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Note 7. Long-Term Debt {continued):

The following is a summary detailing the schedules of annual sinking fund payment requirements by year
and series:

ISSUE GRAND
YEAR SERIESA  SERIESB SERIESO-3 SERIESP-3 SERIESS-I - TOTAL
2019 - - § 645,000 - - - % 645,000
2020 - - - - - -
2021 - - - - - -
2022 - - - - - -
2023 - - - ' - - : -
2024 - - - 3,545,000 - 3,545,000
2025 - - - 4,825,000 - 4,825,000
2026 - - - 5,045,000 - 5,045,000
2027 - - - 5,275,000 - 5,275,000
2028 - - - 5,520,000 - 3,520,000
2029 - - Co. 5,775,000 - 5,775,000
2030 - - - 6,040,000 - 6,040,000
2011 - - - 6,325,000 - 6,325,000
2032 - - - 6,630,000 - 6,630,000
2033 - - - - 6,945,000 - 6,945,000
2034 - - - 7,280,000 - 7,280,000
2035 - ! - ' - 7,630,000 - 7,630,000
2036 - - - 7,995,000 - 7.995,000
2037 - - - 8,375,000 2,185,000 10,560,000
2038 - 9,310,000 - 8,775,000 2,285,000 20,376,000
2039 - 9,780,000 - 9,195,000 1,670,000 20,645,000
2040 - 10,265,000 - 9,635,000 - 19,900,000
2041 - 14,180,000 - - - 14,180,000
2042 - 14,890,000 - - - 14,890,000
2043 - 15,635,000 . - - 15,635,000
2044 - 16,415,000 - - - 16,415,600 .
2045 - 17,235,000 - - - 17,235,000
2046 - 18,100,000 - - - 18,100,000
. 2047 - 19,000,000 - - - 19,000,000
2048 2,910,000 17,040,000 - - - 19,950,000

204% 20,950,000 - - - 20,950.000

Tatal $23,860,000  $161,850,000 § 645000 $114,810,000 $6,140,000  $307,305,000
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 7. Long-Term Debt (continued):
The following Term Bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund rédemption prior to maturity on

January 1 of each of the years and in the respective principal amounts set forth below at a redemption
price of 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest to the date of redemption:

Series 2017A — Bonds Maturing January 1, 2049 Series 2017B — Bonds Maturing fanuary

1, 20438

Year Principal Amount Year Principal Amount

2048 $ 2,910,000 2038 $ 9,310,000

2049 20.950.000 2039 9,780,000
2040 10,265,000

Total $ 23,860,000 2041 14,180,000
2042 14,890,000
2043 15,635,000
2044 16,415,000
2045 17,235,000
2046 18,100,000
2047 19,000,000
2048 17,040,000

Total $161,850,000

Series O-3 - Bonds Maturing January 1, 2019 Series P-3 — BOI‘ldS Maturing January 1, 2029
Year Principal Amount Year Principal Amount

2019 645,000 2024 $ 3.545,000

_ 2025 o 4,825,000

Total $§ 645,000 2026 5,045,000

2027 5,275,000

2028 ' 5,520,000

2029 5,775.000

Total $29,985,000
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Note 7. Long-Term Debt (continued):

Series P-3 - Bonds Maturing January 1, 2040

Year Principal Amount
2030 $ 6,040,000
2031 . 6,325,000
2032 6,630,000
2033 6,945,000
2034 , 7,280,000
2035 7,630,000
2036 7,995,000
2037 - 8,375,000
2038 8,775,000
2039 9,195,000
2040 9.635.000
Total $84,825.000

‘The Series 2009 O-3 Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to their stated maturities.

The Series 2009 P-1 Taxable Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities. The
Series 2009 P-2 Tax-Exempt Private Activity Bonds maturing on or afier january 1, 2021 are subject io
redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the Corporation, upon notice as described below, as a
whole or in part at any time on or after January 1, 2020. The Series 2009 P-2 Tax-Exempt Private
Activity Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed shall be selected by the Trustee in any order of
maturity at the written election of the Corporation signed by an Authorized Officer, as set forth in said
written election, and within a maturity by lot in any other customary manner determined by the Trustee.
Any such redemption shall be made at a Redemption Price of 100% of the principal amount of Series
2009 P-2 Tax-Exempt Private Activity Bonds called for redemption, without premium, plus accrued
interest to the date of redemption. The Series 2009 P-3 Taxable Build America Bonds are not subject to
optional redemption prior to their stated maturities.

The Series 2009 P-3 Taxabie Build America Bonds are subject to redemption prior {0 maturity by written
direction of the Corporation, in whole or in part, at any time on any business day, at the “Make-Whole
Redemption Price”. The Make-Whole Redemption Price is the greater of (i) 100% of the principal
amount of the Series 2009 P-3 Taxable Build America Bonds to be redeemed or {ii) the sum of the
present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest to the maturity date of the
Series 2009 P-3 Taxable Build America Bonds to be redeemed, not including any portion of those
payments of interest accrued and unpaid as of the date on which the Series 2009 P-3 Taxable Build
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Note 7. Long-Term Debt (continued):

America Bonds are to be redeemed, discounted to the date on which the Series 20098 Taxable Bonds are
to be redeemed on a semi-annual basis, assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months, at
the adjusted “Treasury Rate™ plus 25 basis points, plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest on the
Series 2009 P-3 Taxable Build America Bonds to be redeemed to the redemption date.

The “Treasury Rate” is, as of any redemption date, the yield to maturity as of such redemption date of
United States Treasury securities with a constant maturity (as compiled and published in the most recent
Federal Reserve Statistical Release H.15 (519) that has become publicly available on a date that is
selected by the Corporation that is not less than two (2) business days and not more than fifty (50) days
prior to the redemption date (excluding inflation indexed securities) (or, if such Statistical Release is no
longer published, any publicly available source of similar market data)) most nearly equal to the period
from the redemption date to the maturity date of the Series 2009 P-3 Taxable Build America Bonds to be
redeemed; provided, however, that if the period from the redemption date to such maturity date is less
than one (1) year, the weekly average yield on actually traded United States Treasury securities adjusted
to a constant maturity of one (1) year will be used.

The following table sets forth the amount of interest subsidy payments expected to be requested for the
Build America Bonds: '

Year ' Interest Subsidy to be Received
2019 $ 3,135,106
2020 A 3,055,485
2021 ‘ 2,971,302
2022 2,928,030
2023 2,928,030
2024-2028 13,252,322
2029-2033 9,705,870
2034-2038 5,104,525
2039-2040 491,061
Total o $43,571,731

The Series 2012 Bonds maturing on or after January 1, 2024 are subject to redemption prior to maturity,
at the option of the Corporation, upon notice as described below, as a whole or in part at any time on or
after January 1, 2023. The Series 2012 Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed shall be selected by the
Trustee in any order of maturity at the written election of the Corporation signed by an Authorized
Officer, as set forth in said written election, and with a maturity by lot in any other customary manner
determined by the Trustee. Any such redemption shall be made at a Redemption Price of 100% of the
principal amount of Series 2012 Bonds called for redemption, without premium, plus accrued interest to
the date of redemption.
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Note 7. Long-Term Debt (continued):

The Series 2016 Bonds maturing on or after January 2027 are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at
the option of the Corporation, upon notice as described below, as a whole or in part at any time on or
after January 1, 2026. The Series 2016 Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed shall be selected by the
Trustee in any order of maturity at the written election of the Corporation signed by an Authorized
Officer, as set forth in said written election, and with a maturity by lot in any other customary manner
determined by the Trustee. Any such redemption shall be made at a Redemption Price of 100% of the
principal amount of Series 2016 Bonds called for redemption, without premium, plus accrued interest to
the date of redemption.

The Series 2017 Bonds maturing on or after January I, 2029 are subject to redemption prior to maturity,
at the option of the Corporation, upon notice as described in the prior schedule for mandatory sinking
fund redemption, as a whole or in part at any time on or after January |, 2028. The Series 2017 Bonds or
portions thereof to be redeemed shall be selected by the Trustee in any order of maturity at the written
election of the Corporation signed by an Authorized Officer of the Corporation, as set forth in said
written election, and within a maturity by lot in any other customary manner determined by the Trustee.
Any such redemption shall be made at 2 Redemption Price of 100% of the principal amount of Series
2017 Bonds called for redemption, without premium, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.

The following is a summary of all long-term debt of the Corporation as of December 31, 2018 and 2017:

Baiance . Balance Due
December 31, Issued/ December 31, Within One
2017 Adjustments Retired 2018 Year
Restricted:
Bond Payable $491,975,000 (11,230,000) 480,745,000 11,640,000
Capital Lease 2,000,000 1,294 822 { 263,665) 3,031,157 2,031,382
Total $493,975.000 1,294 822 (11,493,665} $483,776.157 13.671.382
Add: Unamortized Bond Premium 22,220,719
l.ess: Due within One Year 13.671.382
Total . $492.325 404
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Note 7. Long-Term Debt (continued):

Balance Balance Due
December 31, December 31, Within One
2016 Issued Retired 2017 Year
Restricted:
Bond Payable ' $248,290,000 255,000,000 {11,315,000) 491,975,000 11,230,000
Capital Lease 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,600,000
Total $250,290,000 255,000,000 (11,315,000) $493,975,000 12,830,000
Add: Unamortized Bond Premium 23,398,955
Less: Due within One Year 12,830,000
Total $504,543,955

Note 8. Leases Obligations
At December 31, 2018, the Corporation had lease agreements in effect for the following:
Operating Lease:

Mailing Machine

Operating Leases — Future minimum rental payments under operating lease agreements are as follows:

Year | Amount
2019 $_1.200
Total minimum Lease Payménts § 1,200

Rental payments under operating leases for the year 2018 and 2017 were $4,800 and $4,800 respectively.

Capital Leases:
Eleven (11) Copiers and eight (8) Forklifts

Capital Leases - Future minimum rental payments under a capital lease agreement for eleven copiers are
as follows:
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Capital Leases (continued):

Year Amount
2019 $ 370,825
2020 352,924
2021 308,492
2022 73.917
Total Minimum Lease Payments‘ 1,106,158
Less: Amount Representing [nterest 75,002
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $1,031,156°

Lease payments under Capital leases for the years 2018 and 2017 were $263,665 and $45,425
respectively.

Note 9. Economic Dependency

The South Jersey Port Corporation depends upon the State of New Jersey for economic assistance.
Under the provisions of the South Jersey Port Corporation Act, the Board Chairman of the Corporation
annually certifies to the State of New Jersey the amounts required to maintain certain reserve balances in
the debt service and debt service reserve accounts and also in the tax maintenance reserve account.

Employees of the South Jersey Port Corporation may participate in the New Jersey State Employees’
Deferred Compensation Plan. The Plan was established by New Jersey Public Law 1978, Chapter 39 and
is subject to compliance with Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code. The New Jersey State
Employees' Deferred Compensation Board is the governing body of the Plan.

Note 11. PILOT Payments

City of Camden PILOT Payments — The Corporation entered into a 2018 payment in lieu of tax
agreement with the City of Camden requiring the Corporation to make payment of four million dollars
($4,000,000). The City’s fiscal year for 2018 began in July 1, 2017 and ended June 30, 2018, Pursuant
to the 2018 “PILOT" agreement, the Corporation is not required to make the 2018 “PILOT” payment
until such time as the payment has been appropriated by the State of New Jersey and the payment is
received by the Corporation.

County of Camden PILOT Payments - The Corporation has entered into a 2018 payment in lieu of tax .
agreement with the County requiring the Corporation to make payment of four hundred nineteen
thousand dollars ($419,000) in the calendar year 2018. An appropriation of $419,000 will be required
from the State to make payment to the 2019 County of Camden “PILOT Tax Agreement”.
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Note 11. PILOT Payments (continued):

City of Salem PILOT Payments — The Corporation has entered into a 2018 payment in lieu of tax
agreement with the City of Salem requiring the Corporation to make payment of thirty one thousand two
hundred and twenty five dollars $(31,225) in the calendar year 2018. An appropriation of $31,225 will
be required from the State to make payment to the 2019 City of Salem “PILOT Tax Agreement”.

Borough of Paulsboro PILOT Payments — The Corporation has entered into a 2018 payment in lieu of
tax agreement with the Borough requiring the Corporation to make annual payments of five hundred
thousand ($500,000) in the calendar year 2018. An appropriation of $500,000 will be required from the
State to make payment to the 2019 County of Gloucester “PILOT Tax Agreement”.

In December 2005, the Board of Directors of the South Jersey Port Corporation entered into a lease
agreement with the Borough of Paulsboro for the lease of 190 acres for the Building of a Port Facility. In
the lease agreement the South Jersey Port Corporation agreed to make a Payment in Lieu of Taxes
(“PILOT”) to the Borough of Paulsboro of $500,000 (five hundred thousand dollars) plus 2 % of the
value of the Buildings and 1 % of the value of the land that will be subleased to private companies. The
enabling legislation of the South Jersey Port Corporation requires that the State of New Jersey will
fund/replenish the Property Tax Reserve Fund of the South Jersey Port Corporation for any such monies
owed on PILOT agreements such as the PILOT agreement with the Borough of Paulsboro.

County of Gloucester PILOT Payments — The Corporation has entered into a 2018 payment in lieu of
tax agreement with the County requiring the Corporation to make annual payments of one hundred fifty
thousand dolfars ($150,000). An appropriation of $150,000 will be required from the State to make
payment to the 2019 County of Gloucester “PILOT Tax Agreement”,

All Pilot payments are Pursuant to N.J.8.4.7/2: 11420 the amounts are credited to the “South Jersey Port
Corporation Tax Reserve Fund”. (See Schedule in Supplementary Schedules)

Note 12, Capital Projects and Funding Sources

During 2001 South Jersey Port Corporation entered into a Capital Lease with the Delaware River Port
Authority (DRPA) in the amount of $2,000,000 for electrical substation upgrades at the Broadway
terminal. The lease term is twenty years at no interest rate. As of the date of this report no payments have
been made on the lease. It is the opinion of the Corporation the Agreement with the DRPA for the
electrical substation upgrade at the Broadway Terminal was a grant and as such no payment(s) are
required. Whereas the DRPA claims that this was a loan.

The Corporation's construction in progress consists of the following: Skylight Renovations for Bonds
Series O-3 in the amount of $518,636 and Paulsboro Marine Terminal Project for Bond Series 2017 in
the amount of $86,308,358. Dredging in the amount of $204,379 and other items in the amount of
$105,390. Total construction in progress amounted to $87,136,763.
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Note 13, Port of Salem

The Salem Municipal Port Authority (the "Salem Port") was established in 1983 to finance and build a
port for the City of Salem, New Jersey. In 1996, the Corporation purchased the Salem Port facilities
located in the City of Salem, New Jersey. The Corporation entered into a lease with U.S. Concrete
providing for the maintenance and operation of the marine shipping terminal facilities at the Salem Port.

Note 14. Paulsboro Marine Terminal Project and Financing

The Corporation and Paulsboro entered into a certain redeveiopment agreement with respect to the
Development and Construction of a Marine Terminal within the Borough of Paulsboro, South Jersey
Port District dated January 16, 2006 (as amended, the “‘Redevelopment Agreement”), Under the
Redevelopment Agreement, the Corporation was granted the right and obligation to develop the
Paulsboro Marine ‘Terminal located in Paulsboro, Gloucester County, in two phases, with (i) Phase [
constituting a replacement for the loss of function of two berths and other related infrastructure and
equipment resulting from a pier collapse at the Corporation’s Balzano Terminal and (ii) Phase II
constituting an expansion of Phase | through the addition of another two piers adjacent to the two
replacement berths (the “Paulsboro Marine Terminal Project™).

The Corporation and the Gloucester County [mprovement Authority (“GCIA™) have also entered into
that certain “Paulsboro Port Project Developmient and Management Agreement” dated as of August |.
2009 (the “Development and Management Agreement™). Pursuant to the Development and Management
Agreement, the Corporation shall set forth the overall parameters for the design and development of the
Paulsboro Marine Terminal, and the GCIA shall enter into the various contracts required to implement
this development. Among other things, this arrangement allows the Corporation to focus on the future
leasing of the Paulsboro Marine Terminal, to maximize its revenue potential. :

- The Paulsboro Marine Terminal is located along the eastern bank of the Delaware River, across from the
Philadelphia International Airport, just south of Mantua Creek. The site consists of primarily two
parcels, both of which are controlled by Paulsboro: (1) a 130-acre parcel that was previously operated by
BP Oil Company (the “BP Site”) and (2) an adjacent 60-acre parcel that was operated by Essex
Chemical, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Dow Chemical Company (the “Essex Site”).

The South Jersey Port Corporation has completed Phase I of the development of a new marine terminal in
- Gloucester County, New Jersey. In conjunction with the Gloucester County Improvement Authority
(GCIA), the Port is redeveloping the former 130-acre British Petroleum (BP) Oil Terminal and an
adjacent 60-acre former Essex [ndustrial Chemicals, Inc. (Essex) into a new, deep-water marine terminal
with associated processing, distribution, assembly and intermodal operations that will be known as the
Paulsboro Marine Terminal project. This project is being funded by SJPC marine terminal revenue
bonds. Direct vehicular and truck access from [nterstate 295 to the terminal will be provided via a new
two-lane, public access road and bridge structure constructed over Mantua Creek. The access road and
bridge project are being funded by a grant agreement between the NJ Department of Transportation,
Gloucester County and the GCIA.

The terminal site is bordered by the Delaware River to the north; Mantua Creek to the east; residential
neighborhoods to the west: and a combination of developed and non-developed land to the south. Access
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Note 14. Paulsboro Marine Terminal Project and Financing (continued):

to the Delaware River's main channel is direct and without obstacle. Phase [ project elements include a
single berth pile supported wharf, site development and improvements including dredging and fill
material placement, as well as the creation of an approximately 20-acre tidal wetlands mitigation site at a
former dredged material management facility known as the Delaware River Equestrian, Agricultural and
Marine Park, (i.e. DREAM Park), which is operated by the GCIA.

The Corporation has funded Phase | of the Paulsboro Marine Terminal Project with proceeds of the
Series 2009 P Bonds, as well as a portion of the proceeds of the Series 2007 N Bonds and the Series 2008
O Bonds. The aggregate amount of Bonds issued for the Paulsboro Marine Terminal Project is
$176,737,986.

The Corporation has negotiated a lease agreement with Holt Logistics Corporation (Paulsboro Waterfront
Development, LLC) to serve as the terminal operator for the Paulsboro Marine Terminal that shall house
private operations, which in turn is expected to generate revenues for the Corporation.

This public-private partnership is already paying dividends as Paulsboro has become the prime port of
call for NLMK USA. A 50-acre dockside parcel at Paulsboro Marine Terminal has been dedicated to the
import of steel slabs for NLMK USA, one of the leading suppliers of steel products in the US. NLMK
USA will use the Paulsboro Marine Terminal as a prime port to import steel slabs for rail shipment for
distribution throughout North America.

The first ships were received at the Paulsboro Marine Terminal in March 2017.

The opening of the Paulsboro Marine Terminal marks the completion of Phase [ and the beginning of a
continued expansion to grow water-borne cargo business. Phase II will extend the wharf to 2,200 feet to
accommodate up to four ships, a 500-foot barge berth and upland improvements to accommodate future
cargo customer needs.

On August 29, 2017, the Corporation finally adopted a new subordinated bond resolution. This
resolution precludes the issuance of additional bonds under its existing resolution, with the exception of
refunding bonds which may be issued to refund the outstanding bonds summarized above. The
Subordinated bond resolution revised and simplified the process for issuing future bond issues by the
Corporation and authorized an initial series of bonds with a not to exceed amount of $255,000,000. On
December 5, 2017, the Corporation issued its $255,000,000 Subordinated Marine Terminal Revenue
Bonds, Series 2017, consisting of $23,860,000 Subordinated Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series
2017A (Tax Exempt) and $231,140,000 Subordinated Marine Terminal Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B
(AMT). The purpose of the issue was to fund completion of the Paulsboro Marine Terminal and
undertake needed repairs at facilities within the Camden facilities. In total, the Corporation realized
. $271,099,472.62 from the sale of the Series 2017 Bonds, representing the $255,000,000 principal amount
of the Series 2017 Bonds, plus an original issue premium of $17,229.246.35 and less a Purchaser's
discount of §1,129,773.73.  From these amounts, the Corporation alflocated these proceeds as follows:

{a) $22,168,441.96 was deposited to fund the undertaking of the Tax Exempt Projects. “Tax Exempt
Projects” mean the following: (i) maintenance dredging at Balzano and Broadway terminals,
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Note 14. Paulsboro Marine Terminal Project and Financing (continued):

{ii) reconstruction of connecting bridge over Newton Creek, (iti) environmental remediation and capping
of Corporation property within terminal sites, and (iv) replace underground fire system and ut1|1t:es
within terminal sites;

(b) $212,815,132.33 was deposited to fund the undertaking of the AMT Projects. “AMT Projects™ mean
the following; (i) deepening to 45'+2' from Paulsboro Berth to channel, including the removal of
approximately 500,000CY of material to be dredged, CDF Disposal; (ii) construction of 600 foot upriver
deepwater wharf; (iii) construction/completion of Mantua Creek Berth Connection, approximately 500
foot including bollards, fenders, and dredging to restore to 20 ft depth; (iv) construction/completion of
downriver deepwater wharf of approximately 950 linear feet and including remaining Deep Draft Berth,
All Infill, Plus Trestles 1 and 3; (v) upland improvements to Paulsboro terminal facility, including
installation of pavement subbase, asphalt paving of 57 acres+/-, plus striping, instaliation of 10,000 feet
of terminal fencing, construction of maintenance and repair facility with locker room, construction of
Gate Complex (Security, truck and rail interchange), upgrade to sewage pump station and sanitary force
main to GCUA, installation of fire hydrants and laterals, construction and installation of high-mast lights
and duct banks and completion of terminal rail connections (approximately 2000 feet, plus 4 turnouts)
and (iv) upland improvements to Balzano and Broadway terminals, including construct/renovate 100,000
sf warehouse at Broadway Terminal, pier pile repairs, refrigeration system replacement to existing
warehouses (195,120 sf) at Pier 5 to exiend useful life of system through end of lease and replace fire
suppression system witlh existing warehouses;

(c) $22,000,000.00 was deposited to satisfy the Debt Reserve Requirement under the Subordinated
General Bond Resolution;

(d) $445,065.00 was deposited to pay the Costs of [ssuance for the Series 2017 Bonds;

(e} $13,670,833.33 was deposited into the Debt Service Fund to pay a portion of the interest due on the
Series 2017 Bonds on July 1, 2018 and January 1, 2019; and

(f) $50,000 was retained until the Corporation receives notice from the State that the Purchaser has
satisfied its obligation thereto. ‘

Note 15. Reserve for Inventory of Supplies

Inventories ace valued at historical cost. The costs of inventories in Business-Type Activities are
recorded as expenditures when purchased. The Corporation established their inventory of supplies in
2005, currently valued at $1,340,640 as of December 31, 2018 and $1,276,911 as of December 31, 2017,

Note 16. Post-Retirement Benefits

Chapter 384 of Public Laws 1987 and Chapter 6 of Public Laws 1990 required PERS, to fund post-
retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after reaching 60 and accumulating 25
years of credited service. P.L. 2007, c. 103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-retirement
medical benefits through the PERS system. It created separate funds outside of the pension plans for the
funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired State employees. The cost of (hese
benefits is funded through contributions by the State in accordance with P.L. 1994, ¢.62. Funding of post-
retirement medical premiums changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in
fiscal year 1994,
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Note 16. Post-Retirement Benefits (continued):

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992, ¢.126, which provides free health
benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program. The State paid $238.9 million toward
Chapter 126 benefits for 30,913 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2017,

State Health Benefits Plan Description

Starting in April 2014, the South Jersey Port Corporation began contributing to the State Health Benefits
Program (SHBP), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit post-employment healthcare plan
administered by the State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. SHBP was established in
1961 under N.J.S.A. 52: 14-17.25 et seq., to provide health benefits to State employees, retirees, and their
“dependents. Rules governing the operation and administration of the program are found in Title 17,
Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. SHBP provides medical, prescription drugs, mental
health/substance abuse, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered dependents.

The SHBP was extended to employees, retirees, and dependents of participating local public employers
in 1964. Local employers must adopt a resolution to participate in the SHBP. In 1990, The South Jersey
Port Corporation authorized participation in the SHBP's post-retirement benefit program through a self -
insured program. In 2014, through resolution 2014-1-0015, the Corporation approved to participate into
the New Jersey State Health Benefit Program. The Corporation adopted the provision of Chapter 88,
Public Laws of 1974 as amended by Chapter 436, P.L. 1981 to permit {ocal public employers to pay the
premium charges for certain eligible pensioners and their dependents and to pay Medicare charges for
such retirees and their spouses covered by the New Jersey Health Benefits Program. In April 2014 Port
Corporation employees began making health benefit contributions of 1.5% of their base salaries towards
the health benefit costs. -

The State Health Benefits Commission is the executive body established by statute to be responsible for
the operation of the SHBP, The State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
the SHBP. That report may be obtained by writing to: State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and
Benefits, P.O. Box 295, Trenton, NJ (8625-0265,

Funding Policy

Participating employers are contractuaily required to contribute based on the amount of premiums
attributable to their retirees. Post-retirement medical benefits under the plan have been funded on a pay-
as-you-go basis since 1994, Prior to 1994, medical benefits were funded on an actuarial basis.

Contributions to pay for the health premiums of participating retirees in the SHBP are billed to South
Jersey Port Corporation on a monthly basis. As a participating employer the Authority will pay and remit
to the State treasury contributions to cover the full cost of premiums for eligible pensioners on a basis
comparable to the reimbursement made by the State to its eligible pensioners and their spouses in
accordance with provisions of chapter 75, Public Laws of 1972,
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Note 16. Post-Retirement Benefits (continued):

The South Jersey Port Corporation contributions to SHBP for the, year ended December 31, 2018 and
2017 was $483,039 and $386,937 respectively, which equaled the required contributions for the year.
There were twenty-three (23) retired participants eligible at December 3!, 2018 and sixteen (16) for

2017,
General Information About the OPEB Plan

The State ealth Benefit Local Government Retired Employees Plan (the Plan) is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan with a special funding
situation, [t covers employees of local government employers that have adopted a resolution to
participate in the Plan, The Plan meets the definition of an equivalent arrangement as defined in
paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, dccounting and Financial Reporting for the Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions (GASB Statement No. 75); therefore, assets are accumulated to pay
associated benefits, For additional information about the Plan, please refer to the State of New Jersey
(the State), Division of Pensions and Benefits’ (the Division) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR), which can be found at https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/financial-reports.shtiml.

The Plan provides medical and prescription drug to retirees and their covered dependents of the
employers. Under the provisions of Chapter 88, P.L 1974 and Chapter 48, P.L. 1999, local government
employers electing to provide postretirement medical coverage to their employees must file a resolution
with the Division. Under Chapter 88, local employers elect to provide benefit coverage based on the
eligibility rules and regulations promulgated by the State Health Benefits Commission. Chapter 48 aliows
local employers to establish their own age and service eligibility for emplover paid heaith benefits
coverage for retired employees. Under Chapter 48, the employer may assume the cost of postretirement
medical coverage for employees and their dependents who: 1) retired on a disability pension; or 2) retired
with 25 or mare years of service credit in a State or locally administered retirement system and a period
of service of up to 25 years with the employer at the time of retirement as established by the employer; or
3) retired and reached the age of 65 with 25 or more years of service credit in a State or locally
administered retirement system and a period of service of up to 25 years with the employer at the time of
retirement as established by the employer; or 4) retired and reached age 62 with at least 15 years of
service with the employer. Further, the law provides that the employer paid obligations for retiree
coverage may be determined by means of a collective negotiation agreement.

Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L, 2011, future retirces eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have
less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a perceniage of the cost
of their health care coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or more years of pension service
credit. The percentage of the premium for which the retiree will be responsible will be determined based
on the retiree’s annual retivement benefit and level of coverage.

Allocation Methodology

GASB Statement No. 75 requires participating employers in the Plan to recognize their proportionate
share ol the collective net OPEB lability, collective deferred outilows of resources, collective deferred
inflows of resources, and collective OPEB expense. The special funding situation’s and nonspecial
funding situation’s net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and
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Note 16. Post-Retirement Benefits (continued):

OPEB expense are based on separately calculated total OPEB liabilities. The nonspecial funding
situation’s net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and OPEB
expense are further allocated to employers based on the ratio of the plan members of an individual
employer to the total members of the Plan’s nonspecial funding situation during the measurement period
July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018.

Net OPEB Liability
Components of Net QPEB Liability

The components of the collective net OPEB liability of the participating employers in the Plan as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017
Total OPEB Liability $19,289,032 - $25,561,037
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 379,580 261,241
Net OPEB Liability $18,909.451 - $25,296,796_
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
As a % of Total OPEB Liability 1.97% 1.03%

The total OPEB liability as of December 31, 2018 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2018. The total OPEB liability as of December 31, 2017 was determined by an actuariai valuation as
of June 30, 2017. The actuvarial assumptions vary for each plan member depending on the pension plan
the member is enrolled in. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to
all periods in the measurement:

inflation Rate | 2.50%
Salary Increases*:
Through 2026 1.65% to 8.98%
Thereafter 2.65% t0 9.98%

* Salary increases are based on the defined benefit plan that the member is enrolled and his or her age.

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2006 leadcount-Weighted Healthy Employee
Male/Female mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the centrat
year using the MP-2017 scale. Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2006 [leadcount-
Weighted Healthy Annuitant. Male/Female mortality table with fully generational tmprovement
projections [rom the central year using the MP-2017 scale. Disability mortality was based on the RP-
2006 Headcount-Weighted Disabled Male/Female mortality table with fully generational improvement
projections from the central year using the MP-2017 scale.
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Note 16. Post-Retirement Benefits (continued):

Certain actuarial assumptions used in the July I, 2016 valuation were based on the results of the pension
plans’ experience studies for which the members are eligible for coverage under this Plan — the Police
and Firemen Retirement System (PFRS) and the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS). The
PFRS and PERS experience studies were p:epared for the periods July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2013 and July
1,2011 to June 30, 2014, respectively. :

[00% of active members are considered to participate in the Plan upon retirement.

Hedalth Care Trend Assumptions
For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) and health maintenance organization (HMO)

medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.8% and decreases to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after cight
years. For self-insured post-65 PPO and HMO medical benefits, the trend rate is 4.5%. For prescription
drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 8.0% decreasing to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after seven years.
For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%. The Medicare Advantage trend rate is
4.5% and will continue in all future years.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2018 and 2017 was 3.87% and 3.58%, respectively. This represents the
municipal bond return rate as chosen by the State. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal
Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of
AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond rate, it is not considered
in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at the municipal bond rate.

Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liubility to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the collective net OPEB liability of the participating employers as of June 30,
2018 and 2017, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the collective net
OPEB liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or [-
percentage- point higher than the current rate:

2018

At Current )
At 1% Discount ‘ At 1%
Decrease {2.58%) Rate {3.58%) Increase (4.58%)

Corporation’s Proportionate
Share of Net OPEB Liability $22,185,786 318,909,451 516,292,402
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Note 16. Post-Retirement Benefits (continued):

2017

At Current
At 1% Discount At 1%
Decrease (1.85%) Rate (2.85%) Increase (3.85%)

Corporation’s Proportionate
Share of Net OPEB Liability $ 29,838,324 $25,296,796 $ 21,693,165

Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Trend Rate:

The following presents the net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, calculated
using the healthcare trend rate as disclosed above as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it
was calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher
than the current rate:

2018
At 1% Healthcare Cost At %
Decrease Trend Rate Increase
Corporation’s Proportionate
Share of Net OPEB Liability $15,773,514 $18,909,451 $22,967,820
2017
At 1% Healthcare Cost At 1%
Decrease Trend Rate [ncrease
Corporation’s Proportionate
Share of Net OPEB Liability $21,022376 $25,296,796 $30,862,385

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

The amounts reported as a deferred outflow of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense for December 31, 2018 and 2017 respectively as follows:
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Note 16. Post-Retirement Benefits (continued):

Year ended December 31, 2018 : Year ended December 31, 2017 :
2019 § (1,440,558) 2018 % (706,162)
2020 {1,440,558) 2019 (706,162)
2021 (1,440,558) 2020 {706,162)
2022 (1,440,558) 2021 (706,162)
2023 (1,440,560) 2022 (706,162)
Thereafter {4,529,611) Thereafter (2,149,368)
Total § - (11,732,423) Total § {5,680,178)

Note 17. Arbitrage Rebate Calculation

The arbitrage rebate requirement imposed by section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code require that
certain profits or arbitrage earned from investing proceeds of tax-exempt bonds be rebated to the Federal
Government. The rebate amount due to the Federal Government is equal to the excess of the amount
earned on all non-purpose investments purchased with gross proceeds of the bonds over the amount that
would have been earned if such non-purpose investiments were invested at a yield equal to the yield of the
bonds.

This Arbitrage calculation has been performed through January 25, 2019 and the Corporation is in
material compliance with the arbitrage rebate requirements,

Note 18: Retroactive Restatement of Net Position

The Authority adopted GASB No. 75 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pension during the 2018 fiscal year as required by the pronouncement. The
pronouncement requires the Authority to record its proportional share of the State of New Jersey’s Other
Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) liability on the face of its financial statements as of December 31,

- 2018 and to record related OPEB expense in accordance with the pronouncement, In order to correctly
reflect OPEB expense in accordance with GASB No. 75, the beginning Net Position of the Authority was
adjusted to reflect the beginning balance of the OPEB liability. Since the measurement date of the OPEB
liability is December 31, 2016, the restatement adjustments to Net Position relate to the beginning OPEB
ltability measured as of January [, 2017,

Net Position — Per Exhibit B, Beginning of Year, January 1, 2017 $ 50,609,871
Restatement of:
OPEB Liability _(30,195.094)

Net Position - Per Exhibit B, Beginning of Year, January |, 2017 $20,414,777
{As Restated) ' _

- 68 -



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 19. Subsequent Events

The South Jersey Port Corporation has evaluated subsequent events occurring after December 31, 2018
through the date of May 30, 2019, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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Operating Revenues:
Marine Direct:
1.eases - Marine Direct
Crane Rental
Dockage
Handling
Storage
Wharfage
Demurrage

Total Marine Direct

Marine Related:
Leases - [ndustrial
Utilities
Port of Salem Revenue
Miscellaneous

Total Marine Related

Gther Income:
[ncome on Investments
Miscellaneous

Total Other Income

Grant Revenue |

Total Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Port Operations:
Labor Expense:

Labor Crane
Labor iHandling
L.abor Repairs & Maintenance
Secunty
Supervisors

Total Labor Expense

Payroll Taxes
Workers Compensation Insurance
Employee Benefits:
Hospitalization
Vacation, Holiday, Sick. Pension
Miscellaneous Employer Expenses

Tatal Employee Benelits

Crane Rental - Gas & Qil

SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
ACTUAL COMPARED TO BUDGET

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2417

SCHEDULE L
(Page | of 3)

2018 2017
ORIGINAL — MODIFIED DRIGINAL __ MODIFIED

BUDGET  BUDGET  ACTUAL BUDGET  BUDGET  ACTUAL
$6.744.83 6.744.831 6.081.416 $6612579 6,612,579 6,242,642
1.049.679 1.049.679 1,780.938 1,029,097 1.029.097 1.690.298
2191132 2191132 2712241 2048169 2.148.169 2,869,585
5.012.633 5012633 . 4838288 4914346 4.914,346 5,552,367
1.802.434 1.802.434 1.812.004 1,767,092 1767.092 .576.594
3,388,995 1388995  3.614377 3322544 33225 4.183.509

5.463 5463 ‘ 5,356 5.356

20,195,167 20195167 20,348,264 19799183 19.799,183 22,114,995
557.944 557.944 598,953 547,004 547,004 735,713
704,880 704,880 876,550 691,059 £91.059 857.598
131,115 131,115 129,123 128,544 128,544 129,774
459,355 459355 809.336 450,349 450,249 785.453
1,853,294 1853294 2413962 1,816,956 1,816,956 2,508,538
140,454 140,454 238,950 137.700 137,700 141,554
157,407 (57,407 52143 154,321 {54,321 133,559
297,861 297,861 291,093 292,021 292,021 475,113
3,193,957 7,683,862
$22.346,322 22346322 26747276 $21908.160 _ 21908.160 _ 32782.508
283 892 283,892 284,686 278325 . 278.325 306,386
1.594.274 1,594,274 1,996,524 ,563.014 1,563,014 2024277
1,051,873 1.051.873 £94.923 1.031.248 1.031.248 045,588
728 080 728.080 784.858 713,804 713.804 726,554
597747 597.747 548,161 586,026 586,026 574.986
4355866 4255866 4,509,152 4172417 472417 4,577,791
472,451 472,451 438,530 463.187 463,187 461412
447,940 147,940 594,340 135,157 £39.157 744,302
1.909.610 1.909.610 1 283,661 | 872,167 (872,167 2401249
177,544 477,544 910.455 168,180 168,180 748,893
39,171 39,171 48,080 384403 18403 42215
1346TH6 3346716 3.275.066 3,281,004 3281094 4398071
97.499 97499 102,502 95 587 61,778
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

ACTUAL COMPARED TO BUDGET

FOR TUE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

SCHEDULE |
(Page 2 0f 3)

2018 017
ORIGINAL MODIFIED ORIGINAL MODIFIED
} BUDGET BUDGET ALCTUAL BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL
Operating Expenses {Continued):
Handling:
CGus &l 235934 235934 [92,347 231,308 231,308 195,167
Miscelianeous 74,084 74,084 137,996 73,220 73,220 102,611
Trucking Expenses 55382 55,382 4,268 54,296 54,286 119,046
Clerking & Checking 1,854,910 . 1,854,910 2,172,912 1 818.539 1,818,539 2,775,053
Total Handling 1,220,910 2,220,810 2,507,523 2,177,363 2,177,363 3.191,877
Rental of Equipment 335H 33514 RVA N 32,857 32857 619,069
Trash Removal 132,651 132.651 203,882 30,050 130,050 327,732
Secunity:
Contracted Services 24,676 24,676 16,712 24,192 24,192 55,735
Other Expenses 21,778 21,778 21,351 21,351
Total Security 16,454 46.454 26,712 45,543 45,543 55,735
Port of Salem Operations 60,344 (0,344 61,344 60,743 60,743 59,552
Holities 1489576 1,489,576 1,409,980 1,460,369 1,460,369 1,360,297
Total Port Operations L1.683,530 11.683,530 12,416,933 1 1436023 11,456,023 14,658,902
Repairs & Maintenance:
Buildings & Grounds:
Contracted 273,105 273,105 220924 267,750 267,750 232,645
Fees & Permits 21.768 21,768 30,600 215341 21341 32,778
hfaterials 326,600 326,600 177.481 324,196 320,196 204,274
Toral Buildings & Grounds H21 473 621,473 4249 005 619,287 MG, 287 544,607
Cranes:
Contracted 113,923 113,923 192,593 111,689 111,689 233,151
Matersals 127,238 127.238 37432 124,743 124,743 49,206
Total Cranes 2HL 16l 24,161 230025 236,432 236,432 282,357
Mobile Machinery & Equipment;
Contracted J007 40,007 ¥3.802 39,223 19,223 24,521
Eyuipment 33740 33,740 #8309 33078 $3078 7451
Materials 220,339 220359 332918 116,234 216,234 349,055
Smal} Tools 20,871 20,871 88,929 10,462 20,462 12,377
. Total Mobiie Maclinery &
Lyuipment 315,177 115177 513,968 HIR,0u7 318,997 U3 M
l'otal Repars & Mamtenance 1,177,811 1177811 1172998 1154716 1,154,716 1,223 158
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Operating Expenses (Continued):
General & Administrative:
Labor - Otfice Clencal & Related
Labor - Administrative
Payroll Taxes
Waorkmen's Compensation
Employee Benefits:
Haospitalization
Pension
Insurance
Professional Fees
Miscetlaneous
Telephone
Utilities
Bad Debt

Total General & Administrative
Grant Expenses
Total Operating Expenses

Operating [ncome Before Other
Operating Expenses

Other Operating Expenses: ‘
[epreciation

SCHEBULE |

Operating Income/After Other {Operating

Expenses

{Page 3 of 3y
SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
ACTUAL COMPARED TO BUDGET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
: 2018 2017
ORIGINAL MODIFIED " ORIGINAL MODIFIED
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL
884,528 884.528 815,574 867,185 867.185 929.271
541,764 541.764 283.630 531,141 531.141 187.942
153511 153511 108.222 150,501 150,501 132.469
4,495 4495 5400 4,407 4407 5.760
857.941 857.941 £56.200 841,119 841,119 870,064
666,239 666,239 1,463,507 653,175 653,175 2.054.117
1,684,978 1,684,978 [.211,945 1,651,939 1,651,939 1,199,321

736,646 736,646 637,780 722201 722,201 805,397
811,383 811,388 723,905 795477 795477 717,159
49470 49470 51,366 48,500 48,500 61.943
31,836 31,836 30,000 31212 31,212 30,000
61,200 61,200 48,000 60,000 60,000 48,000
6,483,996 6,483,996 6,235,529 6,356,857 6,356,857 7.241,448
3,193,957 7,683,862

19,345 337 19,345,337 23019417 18,967,596 18,567,596 30,802,670
$3.000,985 3000985 3.727.859 $2.940.564 2,940,564 F979.838
8.057.304 5,812,244
(4,329.445) (3,832,406}
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SCHEDULE 6
SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS *

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2018 2017 2016
Proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.120699% (4.125%908% 0.139036%
Proportionate share of net OPEB liability $ 18,909,451.43 $  25296,796 £ 30,195,094
Authority's covered employee payroll 3 5,340,585 5 5,485,730 3 5,536,764
Authority's proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability (asset) as a percentage
of its covered employee payroll 354.07% 461.14% 545.36%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position

as a % of total OPEB liability 1.97% 1.03% 0.69%

Souce Documents:
All data for the measurement period was provided by the State of New lersey Department of the

Treasury.

* - Until a full ten year trend is compiled. information will be presented for those years for which
information is available.

_79.



Page Intentionally Left Blsink



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART III






SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Public Employees’ Refirement System (PERS)

Changes of benefit terms. The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A, 43:15A. PERS provides
retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical
benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS,

Allocation Methodology. GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Reporting for Pensions, requires
participating - employers in PERS to recognize their proportionate share of the collective net pension
liability, collective deferred outflows of resources, collective deferred inflows of resources, and collective
pension expense. The employer allocation percentages presented in the schedule of employer allocations
and applied to amounts presented in the schedule of pension amounts by employer are based on the ratio
of the contributions of an individual employer to the total contributions to PERS during the measurement
period July I, 2017 through June 30, 2018. Employer allocation percentages have been rounded for
presentation purposes; therefore, amounts presented in the schedule of pension amounts by employer may
result in immaterial differences. Contributions for employers are recognized when due, based on statutory
requirements.

The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.J.S.A.43:15A and requires contributions by active members
and contributing employers. State legislation has modified the amount that is contributed by the State.
The State’s pension contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount, which includes the
employer portion of the normal cost and an amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Funding for
noncontributory group insurance benefits is based on actual claims paid. For fiscal year 2018, the State ‘s
pension contribution was less than the actuarial determined amount.

The local employers’ contribution amounts are based on an actuariaily determined rate, which includes
the normal cost and unfunded accrued liability. Chapter 19, P.L. 2009 provided an option for local
employers of PERS to contribute 50% of the normal and accrued liability contribution amounts certified
for payments due in State fiscal year 2009. Such employers were credited with the full payment and any
such amounts were not included in their unfunded liability. The actuaries determined the unfunded
liability of the System, by employer, for the reduced normal and accrued liability contributions provided
under this faw. This unfunded liability is being paid by the employer in level annual payments over a
period of 15 years, which began with the payments due in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and are
adjusted by the rate of return on the actuarial value of assets.

Changes of assumptions. Preretirement Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee
Preretirement Mortality Table for male and female active participants. For State employees, mortality
tables are setback 4 years for males and females. For local employees, mortality tables are setback 2 years
for males and 7 years for females. In In addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality
from the base year of 2013 using a generalization approach based on the Conduent modified 2014
projection scale. Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and
Female Mortality Tables (setback | year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries
of former members. in addition, the tables for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members
provide for future improvements in mortality from 2012 to 203 using Projection Scale AA and using
generational approach based on the Conduent 2014 projection scale ihereafter. Disability retirement rates
used to value disabled retirees were based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table (setback 3 years for
males and set forward | year for females).

-8 -



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

Additional detailed information about the pension plans is available in the separately issued State of New
Jersey Public Employees’ Retirement System — Schedules of Employer Allocations and Schedules of
Pension Amounts by Employer at hitp://www.nj.gov/treasury/pensions/financial-rprts-home.shtm!

Special Funding Situation — State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employee Plan

The participating employer allocations included in-the supplemental-schedule of-employer special funding
allocations and the supplemental schedule of special funding amounts by employer for each employer are
provided as each employer is required to récord in their financial statements, as an expense and
corresponding revenue, their proportionate share of the OPEB expense allocated to the State of New
Jersey under the special funding situation and to include their proportionate share of collective net OPEB
liability in their respective notes to their financial statements. For this purpose, the proportionate share
was developed based on eligible plan members subject to the special funding situation. This data takes
into account active members from both participating and non-participating employer locations and retired
members currently receiving OPEB benefits.



SINGLE AUDIT SECTION






BRENT W. LEE & CO., LLC
Certified Public Accounting Firm

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; REPORT ON
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE
UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

Board of Directors of the
South Jersey Port Corporation
County of Camden

Camden, New Jersey 08103

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

| have audited the South Jersey Port Corporation's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement, and the New Jersey State Grant Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of South Jersey Port Corporation's major federal program for the
year ended December 31, 2018. South Jersey Port Corporation’s major federal program is identified in the
Summary of Auditor’s Results Section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicabie to its federal program.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of South Jersey Port Corporation’s major
federal programs based on my audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. I conducted my
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; .
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal, State Grants and State Aid. Those standards, Uniform Guidance and New Jersey Circular
OMB 15-08 require that 1 plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal and state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the South Jersey Port Corporation’s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as { considered necessary in the circumstances.

| believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, my audit does not provide a legal determination of the South Jersey Port Corporation's
compliance,

009-456-8804
3008 New Albany Rd., Cinnaminsen, NJ 88077
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Opinion on Each of the Other Major Federal Program

In my opinion, the South Jersey Port Corporation, in the County of Camden, State of New Jersey complied, in
all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the South Jersey Port Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing my audit of compliance | considered South Jersey Port Corporation’s internal control over
comptliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purposes of
expressing my opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance and State of New Jjersey OMB Circular 15-08, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the eifectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
[ do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the South Jersey Port Corporation’s internal control over

compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. | did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that [ consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified. :

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of my testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance and the New Jersey OMB Circular 5-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other

purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

{ have audited the [inancial statements of the South Jersey Port Corporation as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2018, and have issued my report thereon dated July 26, 2019, which contained an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements. My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 and
is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
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the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal awards is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Respectfully submitted,

Brent W. Lee
Certified Public Accountant

Cinnaminson, New Jersey
July 26, 2019
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

1. General

The South Jersey Port Corporation was created by the "South Jjersey Port Corporation Act, N./SA.
12:114", as an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey. The Act conferred upon the Corporation the
powers to establish, acquire, construct, rehabilitate, improve, operate and maintain marine terminals in the
South Jersey Port district, which includes Mercer, Burlington, Camden, Gloucester, Salem, Cumberland and
Cape May counties.

The South Jersey Port Corporation is a component unit of the State of New- Jersey as described in
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14 due to the existence of the above stated act,

NJSA12: 114,

2. Basis of Accounting

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is presented using the basis of
accounting as described in Note | to the Corporation’s financial statements. The information in these
schedules are presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200-Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance), and Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-profit Organizations. '

Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree with amounts reported in the Corporation’s
financial statements.

4. Relationship to Federal Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards agree with the amounts
reported in the related federal financial reports, where required. :
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS & QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMNBER 31, 2018

Section 1— Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? No
2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? No
Noncompiiance material to basic financial
Statements noted? No
Federal Awards
Internal Control over major programs:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? No
2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? No
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with 2 CFR 200 section .516(a) of7 No
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
20.933 National Infrastructure Investments
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A Programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes
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SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS & QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Section II — Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of
provisions of contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements for which

Government Auditing Standards requires reporting in a Uniform Guidance audit.

No financial statement findings noted that required to be reported under Government Aduditing
Standards.

Section HI — Federal Awards Financial Assistance Findings & Questioned Costs
“This section identifies audit findings required to be reported by 2 CFR 200 section .516 of the Uniform

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, as
applicable.

Federal Awards

None

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings reiated to the basic financial statements and
federal and state awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of
Government Auditing Standards, U.S. OMB Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. (.511(a)(b)) and New Jersey OMB's 15-08.

A\l

Summary of Prior Year Findings

Not Applicable
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Resolution #2019-8-0066

RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION BOARD OF
DIRECTORS ACCEPTANCE OF THE 2018 FINANCIAL AUDIT REPORT; #2019-8-0066

WHEREAS, the Members of the South Jersey Port Corporation Board of Directors have been presented
and considered a Request for Action to accept the 2018 Financial Audit Report, in the form of the agenda and
minutes; and

WHEREAS, the Request for Action requested the Members to adopt a resolution authorizing certain
actions by the South Jersey Port Corporation, as outlined and explained in said Request for Action.

NOW, THEREFORE, ON THIS 27" DAY of AUGUST, 2019 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS
OF THE SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The actions set forth in the Action Requested section of the Request for Action, attached hereto
as Exhibit A, are hereby approved, subject to any conditions set forth as such in said Request for Action.

Section 2. The Request for Action, attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby incorporated and made part of
this resolution as though set forth at length herein.

Section 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon expiration of the ten (10) business day period
following the delivery of a true copy of this resolution accompanied by a summary of the action taken at the meeting
by the Beard to the Governor or immediately upoen approval of the minutes by the Governor within the said ten (10)
day period.

Board Member Aye Nay Abstained Recusal Not Present
Richard Alaimo, Chair
Chad Bruner
Christopher Chianese
Robert DeAngelo
Jonathan Gershen
Joseph Maressa, Jr.
Eric Martins
Sheila Roberts
Carl Styles

CERTIFICATE
I, Bruno Cellucci, Acting Board Secretary of the South Jersey Port Corporation, do hereby certify that the foregoing
is a true and correct copy of the resolution duly adopted and approved by the Members of the Port Corporation at a
meeting duly called and held on the 27" of August 2019 and that not less than six Members of the Agency were
present and voted in favor of said resolution,

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have hereunto set my hand and impressed the seal of the Port Corporation this 27" day
of August 2019,

Bruno Cellucci
Acting Board Secretary



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
Board of Directors Meeting — August 27, 2019

ACTION ITEM:

B.

RESOLUTION 2019-8-0067: APPROVAL OF LEASE

RENEWAL WITH D&M TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

Approval is requested to enter into a new agreement with D&M Transportation Services
Co. (D&M), an approximate 27 year lease holder within the Broadway Terminal. D&M
has requested to renew their existing lease which will expire on September 30, 2019. The
terms of the new lease will be for a period of five (5) years with no'renewal options, and
will expire on September 30, 2024.

This leasehold comprises ~ 1,540 sq. ft. of the second floor of Bldg. “I” at the Broadway
Terminal for office space. The new lease will include a 5% increase resulting in a
monthly rental payment of $1,341.00.

This renewed leaséhold will generate an annual revenue stream of $16,092.00, which
includes provisions for annual CPI increases.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is therefore recommending approval of this new five (5) year lease.



Resolution #2019-8-0067

RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION BOARD OF
DIRECTORS APPROVAL OF THE LEASE RENEWAL WITH D&M
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES; #2019-8-0067

WHEREAS, the Members of the South Jérsey Port Corporation Board of Directors have been presented
and considered a Request for Action to approve the Lease renewal with D&M Transportation Services, in the form
of the agenda and minutes; and

WHEREAS, the Request for Action requested the Members to adopt a resolution authorizing certain
actions by the South Jersey Port Corporation, as outlined and explained in said Request for Action.

NOW, THEREFORE, ON THIS 27" DAY of AUGUST, 2019 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS
OF THE SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The actions set forth in the Action Requested section of the Request for Action, attached hereto
as Exhibit A, are hereby approved, subject to any conditions set forth as such in said Request for Action.

Section 2. The Request for Action, attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby incorporated and made part of
this resolution as though set forth at length herein.

Section 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon expiration of the ten (10) business day period
following the delivery of a true copy of this resolution accompanied by a summary of the action taken at the meeting
by the Board to the Governor or immediately upon approval of the minutes by the Governor within the said ten (10)
day period.

Board Member Aye Nay Abstained Recusal Not Present
Richard Alaimo, Chair o

Chad Bruner
Christopher Chianese
Robert DeAngelo
Jonathan Gershen
Joseph Maressa, Jr.
Eric Martins

Sheila Roberts

Carl Styles

CERTIFICATE
I, Bruno Cellucei, Acting Board Secretary of the South Jersey Port Corporation, do hereby certify that the foregoing
is a true and correct copy of the resolution duly adopted and approved by the Members of the Port Corporation at a
meeting duly called and held on the 27™ of August 2019 and that not less than six Members of the Agency were
present and voted in favor of said resolution.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, I have hereunto set my hand and impressed the seal of the Port Corporation this 27" day
of August 2019,

Bruno Cellucci
Acting Board Secretary



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION f'%
Board of Directors Meeting — August 27, 2019 \

sIpC,

ACTION ITEM:

C. RESOLUTION 2019-8-0068: APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE
A TRANSFER OF SEVEN MILLION FOUR HUNDRED AND
EIGHTEEN THOUSAND AND EIGHTY NINE DOLLARS
($7.418.089.00) TO THE BOROUGH OF PAULSBORO FOR THE
WATER MAIN PROJECT TO THE PAULSBORO MARINE
TERMINAL AND TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT TITLED
PAULSBORO PORT WATER MAIN SUPPORT AND ESCROW
AGREEMENT

This resolution addresses two issues related to Paulsboro running a water line to the Paulsboro
Marine Terminal (PMT).

The resolution authorizes the South Jersey Port Corporation to send $7,418,089.00 to Paulsboro
to cover the cost of the Water Main to the PMT. Grants totaling $2,716,805.00 to Paulsboro,
will be transferred to the South Jersey Port Corporation, reducing the cost of the Water Main to
$4,701,284.00. |

The second issue addressed by this resolution is the Agreement between Paulsboro and the South
Jersey Port Corporation, which outlines the terms and responsibilities of each party. Included is
the Escrow Agreement which addresses the transfer of funds, management of the account and
reconciliation of the funds at the end of the project et al

RECOMMENDATION: -
Staff recommends the Board’s consideration and approval of this action.



PAULSBORO PORT WATER MAIN SUPPORT AND ESCROW AGREEMENT

This Paulsboro Port Water Main Support and Escrow Agreement (this "Agreement") is
made as of this ____ day of August, 2019, by and between the BOROUGH OF PAULSBORO
("Borough™), a municipal corporation of the State of New Jersey with offices at 1211 North
Delaware Street, Paulsboro, New Jersey 08066, and the SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORP., a
public body corporate and politic, , having an office at Balzano Marine Terminal, 101 Joseph A.
Balzano Boulevard, Camden, New Jersey 08103 ("SJPC"). The Borough and SJPC are collectively
referred to as the "Parties” and each individually as a "Party." :

WHEREAS, BP Products North America Inc., a Maryland corporation, having an address
at 4101 Winfield Road, Warrenville, Illinois ("BP"), as landowner/lessor, and the Borough, as
lessee, entered into a certain lease for the Paulsboro Marine Terminal dated January 24, 2005 (as
amended from timﬁ to time, the "BP Lease"); and

”

WHEREAS, the Borough and the South Jersey Port Corp. ("SJPC") have heretofore
entered into g'certain sublease agreement for the Paulsboro Marine Terminal, dated January 16,
2006, as amended on June 26, 2006 (as amended, the "Paulsboro Lease"); and :

WHEREAS, the SJPC operates the Paulsboro Marine Terminal; which provides economic
vitality to the people of the Borough and the South Jersey region; and

WHEREAS, in 2000, pursuant to the Local Redevelopment and Housing Law, N.J.S.A.
40A:12-1 et seq. ("LRHL"), the Borough designated the area subject to the Paulsboro Lease as an
"area in need of redevelopment" (the "Redevelopment Area"); and

WHEREAS, in 2002, pursuant to the LRHL, a Redevelopment Plan for the
Redevelopment Area was adopted by the Borough ("Redevelopment Plan"); and
. ]

WHEREAS, one mechanism to provide support for rehabilitation and redevelopment
within the Borough is to ensure appropriate utilities, such as water and sewer, are available to all
sites within the Redevelopment Area and/or existing utilities are upgraded to current standards;
and '

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:12A-8(f), the Borough is empowered to arrange or
contract with redevelopers for the undertaking of any project or redevelopment work, or any part
thereof, and to negotiate and collect revenue from a redeveloper to defray the costs of the

redevelopment entity;

WHEREAS, in connection with the undertaking of the Redevelopment Plan, on January
16, 2006, the Borough and SJPC entered into a Redevelopment Agreement ("Redevelopment
Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3.1(12) of the Redevelopment Agreement, the SJPC
“shall install, or caused to be installed, with the support and non-financial assistance of the



Borough...all off-site infrastructure improvéments that are to be constructed by virtue of the GDP
[General Dévelopment Plan] for the Port Project, if any"; and

WHEREAS, the GDP contemplates future "utility enhancements" including "water” and
"sewer" services; and ‘

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:12A-8(d) of the LRHL, the Borough is empowered
to “comstruct or reconistruct streets, facilities, utilities, and site improvements essential to the
preparation of sites for use in accordance with the redevelopment plan;" and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.LS.A, 40A:12A-22(0) of the LRHL, the Borough is
empowered to "[m]ake and enter into all contracts and agreements necessary or incidental to the
performance of the duties authorized in this act;" and

WHEREAS, the Borough is authorized to implement redevelopment plans, carry out
redevelopment projects, and execute such responsibilities in partnership with other public entities,
pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:12A-8 and N.J.S.A. 40A:12A-22; and

WHEREAS, SJPC is also authorized, pursuant to. N.J.S.A. 12:11A-6, to take certain
actions to assist in the performance of its duties and the execution of its powers under the South
Jersey Port Corp. Act, N.J.S.A. 12:11A-1, et seq.; and ‘

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Paulsboro Port Management Agreement, dated as of
August 1, 2009, as amended to date (as amended, the "DMA"), the SJPC acts as a duly appointed
construction manager for the SJPC and acts at all times as the authorized representative of the
SJPC under the Redevelopment Agreement; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 365, adopted December 20, 1955, as later
amended and supplemented, the Borough established a Water and Sewer Department within the
Borough for the purposes of supplying water for inhabitants of the Borough; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.LS.A. 40A:31-4, the Borough is empowered to acquire,
construct or operate a water supply facility, where so empowered by appropriate ordinance, subject
to obtaining all necessary permits and approvals; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:31-5(c), the Borough is empowered to "receive and
accept from the federal or State government, or any agency or instrumentality thereof, grants or
loans for, or in aid of, the planning, purchase, construction, improvement, extension, enlargement
or reconstruction, or financing of water supply facilities, and to receive and accept from any source,
contributions or money, property, labor or other things of value to be held, used and applied only
for the purposes for which the grants or loans and contributions are made;" and

WHEREAS, SJPC and the Borough have heretofore agreed and determined that utility
enhancements to the water lines providing water service to the Paulsboro Marine Terminal
(referred to herein as the "Water Main Project" defined in paragraph 3(a) below ) are necessary

for the continued operation of the Paulsboro Marine Terminal; and



WHEREAS, the Borough and the SJPC have also heretofore agreed and determined that
the Water Main Project is subject to the Redevelopment Agreement such that SIPC would be
responsible to complete and/or pay for all or a portion of the costs thereof; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NJ.8.A. 40A:12A-22(c), the Borough is empowered to receive
grants and loans from any source for the financing of a redevelopment project; and

WHEREAS, to pay for a portion of the costs of the Water Main Project, the Borough has
received preliminary approval from: (i) the United States Department of Agriculture ("USDA™)
Water & Waste Disposal Program to receive certain loan and grant funding (referred to herein as
the "USDA Financing"); and (ii) the United States Department of Commerce - Economic
Development Administration ("USEDA") to receive certain loan and grant funding (referred to
herein as the "USEDA Financing"), each upon favorable terms to the Borough;

WHEREAS, in order to access the USDA Financing and the USEDA Financing to pay for
a portion of the costs of the Water Main Project, and to receive the grants provided by the USDA
and the USEDA thereunder, the Borough is required to pay the entirety of the costs for the
planning, engineering, procurement, financing, construction, construction oversight, management,
professional services and any and all costs incurred in the completion of the Water Main Project
(“Project Costs™) and seek reimbursement from the USDA and USEDA for a portion of the Project
Costs, and will be required to issue its general obligation bonds or notes, respectively, in
connection therewith (referred to herein as "Borough Debt"); and

WHEREAS, the Borough has limited resources available for purposes of paying the
principal of and interest on such Borough Debt, but will be unable to access the grant funding
referred to above without paying the full cost of the Water Main Project by issuing such Borough
Debt; and

WHEREAS, as noted above, pursuant to the Redevelopment Agreement, SJPC has agreed
to undertake and pay for certain improvements related to the Paulsboro Marine Terminal, including
the Water Main Project; and '

WHEREAS, the SIPC, in accordance with the DMA, is the duly authorized representative
of the SJPC for purposes of effectuating the Redevelopment Agreement, has determined to pay
the full amount of the Project Costs of the Water Main Project, on behalf of the SIPC, as more
specifically set forth herein; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, the mutual obligations contained
herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged by each of the parties, and further, to implement the purposes of the Redevelopment
Agreement, the Local Redevelopment and Housing Law and the Redevelopment Plan, the parties,
intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

1. Mutual Representations.

(a) The Borough and the SIPC agree that the development of the Pauisboro Marine
Terminal and the undertaking and financing of the Water Main Project will continue to be
governed by the Redevelopment Agreement and the DMA.



(b) In the event that any contractual provisions are required by any Legal
Requirements, the Redevelopment Agreement and/or the DMA have been omitted, then the
Borough and the SJPC agree that this Agreement shall be deemed to incorporate all such clauses
by reference and such requirements shall become a part of this Agreement. If such incorporation
occurs and results in a change in the obligations or benefits of one of the Parties, the Borough and
the STPC agree to act in good faith to mitigate such changes in position.

2. Definitions. Except as expressly provided herein to the contrary, all capitalized terms used in
this Agreement shall have the following meanings: -

"GDP" means the General Development Plan of the Paulsboro Marine Terminal.

"Governmental Body" means any federal, state, county or local agency, department,
comimission, authority, court, or tribunal and any successor thereto, exercising executive,
legislative, judicial, or administrative functions of or pertaining to govermment, including,
without limitation, the Borough and the State.

"Legal Requirements" means all laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, orders, regulations and
requirements of any Govemnmental Body, now or hereafter in effect, and, in each case, as
amended from time to time.

3. Boroungh Responsibilities.

(a) Construction of Water Main Project. Subject to reimbursement of the full
amount of the Project Costs under this Agreement from the USDA Financing, the USEDA
financing and/or the SJPC, an estimate of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, the Borough
agrees to undertake, construct and install upgraded water lines from the Borough water tower,
down Beacon Street, to the Paulsboro Marine Terminal ("Water Main Project") as depicted in
plans on file with the Borough. All construction activities for the Water Main Project, including
the planning, development, design, permitting and installation of the water main and all
components necessary for its operation (“Construction Activities"), shall be the responsibility of
the Borough., The Borough, in its sole discretion, may elect to undertake its construction
obligations by contracting with a third party, the selection of such a third party shall be in the sole
discretion of the Borough, subject to any applicable requirements of the Local Public Contracts
Law, N.J.S.A. 40A:11-1 et seq. ("Construction Contractor"). The Borough may also, in its sole
discretion, employ consultants, engineers, attorneys, and/or other professionals determined to be
necessary to acquire financing (including the USDA Loan and the USEDA Loan) and complete
its construction obligations for the Water Main Project, subject to any applicable requirements of
the Local Public Contracts Law, N.I.S.A. 40A:11-1 et seq. ("Professionals™). All costs incurred
by the Borough in its Construction Activities, including any contracts entered into with a
Construction Contractor and any contracts entered into with professionals, shall be included as
“Project Costs.” ‘

(b)  USDA and USEDA Funding. Pursuant to a Public Partnership Agreement, dated
November 22, 2017, between the Borough and SIPC, the Borough has applied for and received
preliminary approval for funding of the Water Main Project, with the condition that SJPC shall
pay all costs in connection with such application, and all Project Costs. The Borough agrees to



take all further necessary steps to obtain the USDA Financing and the USEDA Financing,
including the grants available thereunder, to finance the Project Costs, subject to the terms of this
Agreement,

(c) Issuance of Borough Debt. As noted in the preambles hereof, the USDA Financing
and the USEDA Financing are reimbursable financing programs, part grant and part loan, each
with a local match. For such purposes, the Borough will be initially responsible for payment of
the Project Costs and thereafter reimbursed a portion of such Project Costs from grants made
available by the USDA and the USEDA, with the remaining balance to be funded by a local match
or continue as a loan from the USDA or USEDA, as applicable. Therefore, it will be necessary
for the Borough to issue Borough Debt, the proceeds of which will pay the Project Costs of the
Water Main Project. :

(@)  Information Sharing. The Borough shall provide copies of all reports, plans, and
approvals regarding its activities set forth in Subparagraph 3(a) through 3(b) above to the SJPC
and SJPC, and all Parties, including STPC, shall be permitted to attend all meetings regarding such
activities.

4. SJPC Responsibilities.

(a) Payment of Grant Application Costs. Pursuant to a Public Partnership
Agreement, dated November 22, 2017 ("Borough/SIPC Agreement"), between the Borough and

the SJPC, the SJPC shall pay to the Borough Thirteen Thousand and Five Hundred Dollars
(513,500.00), which amount reimburses the Borough the costs of preparing the application and
applying for the USDA Financing, and Sixteen Thousand Dollars ($16,000.00), which amount
reimburses the Borough the costs of preparing the application and applying for the USEDA
Financing. These payments are collectively referred to as the "Grant Application Costs." Grant
Application Costs will be paid by the SIPC to the Borough upon submission of an invoice in
accordance with the terms and provisions of the Borough/SIPC Agreement.

(b)  Payment for Project Costs. In accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, the SJTPC shall pay, all Project Costs and shall immediately upon the execution of this
Agreement, pay to the Borough the amount of Seven Million Four Hundred Eighteen Thousand
Eighty Nine Dollars ($7,418,089) to be utilized by the Borough to pay, in the first instance, the
Project Costs as set forth in Exhibit A (“Initial Payment”). In the event SIPC is unable to fully
fund the Initial Payment as set forth in this paragraph, the Borough shall be under no obligation to
- construct or complete the Water Main Project. The intention of the Parties is that the Initial
Payment, supplemented by grant reimbursements to be received from the USDA and/or USEDA
shall provide the Borough sufficient cash flow to pay for all Project Costs with any USDA and
USEDA grant provider utilized to reimburse the SJPC for the Initial Payment if not otherwise used
for Project Costs. In the event the Project Costs exceed the costs outlined in Exhibit A, the Borough
shall provide documentation of such costs to the SJPC and the SJPC shall provide prompt payment
of all Project Costs; similarly, in the event ongoing Project Costs require additional cash
expenditures that exceed the amount of funds remaining from the Initial Payment, as supplemented
by grant reimbursements received from the USDA and/or USEDA, if any, the Borough shall
provide documentation of such unpaid Project Costs to the STPC. \The SJPC shall provide prompt
payment of ail Project Costs. In the event payment is not made for such additional Project Costs,



the Borough shall be under no obligation to complete any work related to such additional costs or
take any step related to the additional work. The Parties hereby agree that, because the Borough is
unable to undertake the financial repayment of the Project Costs, and is unable to undertake the
financial risks of repayment without impact to its debt capacity and its financial credit rating, the
SJPC shall deposit with the Borough the Initial Payment to be exclusively dedicated and utilized
to pay the Project Costs. With respect to any payments required of the SJPC under this Agreement,
it is understood and agreed by the Parties that the STPC shall pay only those Project Costs for
which it has funds on hand or reasonable assurance of reimbursement from SJPC from, among
other sources, the proceeds of bonds issued by the SJPC, in each case in accordance with the
provisions of the DMA. Upon completion of the Water Main Project, the Borough shall return to
the SJPC all unexpended funds that had been paid by the SJPC for the Water Main Project,
including unexpended grant proceeds from the USDA and/or USEDA.

5. Events of Default and Remedies.

(a) Events of Default. Any one or more of the following events shall constitute an
Event of Default hereunder, unless such event results from the occurrence of an event of Force
Majeure:

i Failure of the SJPC or the Borough to observe and perform any condition or
agreement in this Agreement and continuance of such failure for a period of thirty (30) days, after
receipt by the defaulting party of written Notice from the non-defaulting party specifying the nature
of such failure and requesting that such failure be remedied.

it Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 4(b) above, the SIPC or its successor
in interest shall fail to make any payment owed by it to the Borough when due and such payments
shall not have been paid or provision satisfactory to the Borough made for such payment, within
30 days after written demand by the Borough to do so.

(b)  Remedies Upon Event of Default by SJPC. In the event that an Event of Default

by the SJPC occurs, then, subject to all other provisions herein for notice, cure and mitigation of
damages, the Borough may take whatever action at law or in equity as may appear necessary or
desirable to enforce the performance or observance of any rights, remedies, obligations, or
agreements of the SIPC, as applicable, under this Agreement including the seeking of damages.

{c) Remedies Upon Event of Default by Borough. In the event that an Event of

Default by the Borough occurs, then, subject to all other provisions herein for notice, cure and
mitigation of damages, the SIPC may take whatever action at law or in equity as may appear
necessary or desirable to enforce the performance or observance of any rights, remedies,
obligations, or agreements of the Borough, as applicable, under this Agreement, including the
seeking of damages,

(d)  Specific Performance. If an Event of Default occurs, or a party hereto threatens
to take an action that will result in the occurrence of an Event of Default, the non-defaulting (or
non-threatening) party shall have the right and remedy, without posting bond or other security, to



have the provisions of this Agreement specifically enforced by any court having equity
jurisdiction, it being acknowledged and agreed that any such breach or threatened breach may
cause irreparable injury and that money damages may not provide an adequate remedy thereto.

(e) Failure or Delay. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any
failure or delay by either party in asserting any of its rights or remedies as to any default, shail not
operate as a waiver of any default, or of any such rights or remedies, or deprive either such party
of its right to institute and maintain any actions or proceedings which it may deem necessary to
protect, assert or enforce any such rights or remedies.

63 Remedies Cumulative. No remedy conferred by any of the provisions of this
Agreement is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy and each and every remedy shall be
cumulative and shall-be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter
existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. The election of any one or more remedijes
shall not constitute a waiver of the right to pursue other available remedies.

(g)  Continuance of Obligations. The occurrence of an Event of Default shall not
relieve the defaulting party of its obligations under this Agreement,

(h) Litigation Costs. In the event that a party to this Agreement successfully pursues
an action to enforce any remedy provided in this Section (b), that party shall be entitled to payment
by the other party of all reasonable costs and expenses incurred in connection with such action,
including reasonable attorney's fees. :

(i) Mitigation. The parties shall act reasonably to mitigate any damages that may be
incurred as the result of an Event of Default hereunder,

6. Notices and Demands. Any notice, approval, waiver, objection or other communication
(for convenience, referred herein as a "notice™) required or permitted to be given hereunder or
given in regard to this Agreement by one party to the other shall be in writing and the same shall
be given and be deemed to have been delivered, served and given (a) if delivered in person, via a
nationally-recognized overnight courier, or by email or facsimile when received by the person to
whom notice is given, or (b) if mailed, (except where actual receipt is specified in this Agreement)
three (3) days after deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, by certified mail, return
receipt requested, addressed to the party at the address specified below: :

To Borough: Paulsboro Borough Clerk
Paulsboro Borough Municipal Building
1211 Delaware Street : '
Paulsboro, New Jersey 08066
{856) 423-1500 (office)
(856) 423-9117 (fax)

With a Copy to : M. James Maley, jr., Esquire
Maley Givens, P.C.
A Professional Corporation
1150 Haddon Avenue, Suite 210



Collingswood, New Jersey 08108
(856) 854-1515 (office)

(856) 858-2944 (fax)
jmaley@maleygivens.com

To SJPC: ‘ Andrew Saporito
Executive Director
South Jersey Port Corp.
Balzano Marine Terminal
101 Joseph A. Balzano Blvd, .
Camden, NJ 08103
(856) 757-4969 (office)
(856) 757-4903 (fax)
asaporito@sjport.com

With a Copy to: Raymond J. Zane, Esquire
131 Delaware Street
Woodbury, NJ 08096
(856) 845-2393 (office)
(856) 845-6121 (fax)
raymondzane@msn.com

Any party may change its address for notices by notice theretofore given in accordance with this
Section and shall be deemed effective only when actually received by the other party.

7. Waiver. No waiver made by any such party with respect to the performance, or manner
or time thereof, or any obligation of any other party or any condition to its own obligation under
this Agreement shall be considered a waiver of any rights of the party making the waiver with
respect to the particular obligation of any other party or condition to its own obligation beyond
those expressly waived in writing and to the extent thereof, or a waiver in any respect in regard to
any other rights of the party making the waiver or any other obligations of any other party.

8. Implementation of Agreement. The Parties hereto agree to cooperate with each other and
to provide all necessary and reasonable documentation, certificates, consents in order to satisfy the
terms and conditions of this Agreement,

9. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. All such counterparts
shall be deemed to be originals and together shall constitute but one and the same instrument,

10. Effective Date. The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date upon which all of
the parties hereto have executed and delivered this Agreement,



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partieé hereto have caused this Agreement to be properly
executed and their corporate seals (where applicable) affixed and attested to as of the day and year
first above written,

ATTEST: BOROUGH OF PAULSBORO
KATHY VAN SCOY, Municipal Clerk GARY C. STEVENSON, Mayor
 ATTEST: SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORP.

Andrew Saporito
Executive Director



Resolution #2019-8-0068

RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION BOARD OF
DIRECTORS APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE A TRANSFER OF SEVEN MILLION FOUR
- HUNDRED AND EIGHTEEN THOUSAND AND EIGHTY NINE DOLLARS
($7,418,089.00) TO THE BOROUGH OF PAULSBORO FOR THE WATER MAIN
PROJECT TO THE PAULSBORO MARINE TERMINAL AND TO APPROVE THE
AGREEMENT TITLED PAULSBORQ PORT WATER MAIN SUPPORT AND ESCROW
AGREEMENT; #2019-8-0068

WHEREAS, the Members of the South Jérsey Port Corporation Board of Directors have been presented
and considered a Request for Action to approve the transfer and to approve the agreement, in the form of the agenda
and minutes; and ‘

WHEREAS, the Request for Action requested the Members to adopt a resolution authorizing certain
actions by the South Jersey Port Corporation, as outlined and explained in said Request for Action.

NOW, THEREFORE, ON THIS 27" DAY of AUGUST, 2019 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS
OF THE SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS FOLLOWS:

Section I. The actions set forth in the Action Requested section of the Request for Action, attached hereto
as Exhibit A, are hereby approved, subject to any conditions set forth as such in said Request for Action.

Section 2. The Request for Action, attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby incorporated and made part of
this resolution as though set forth at length herein.

Section 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon expiration of the ten (10) business day period
following the delivery of a true copy of this resolution accompanied by a summary of the action taken at the meeting
by the Board to the Governor or immediately upon approval of the minutes by the Governor within the said ten (10)
day period.

Board Member Aye Nay Abstained Recusal Not Present
Richard Alaimo, Chair
Chad Bruner
Christopher Chianese
Robert DeAngelo
Jonathan Gershen
Joseph Maressa, Jr.

Eric Martins
Sheila Roberts
Carl Styles ~

CERTIFICATE
1, Bruno Cellucci, Acting Board Secretary of the South Jersey Port Corporation, do hereby certify that the foregoing
is a true and correct copy of the resolution duly adopted and approved by the Members of the Port Corporation at a
meeting duly called and held on the 27® of August 2019 and that not less than six Members of the Agency were
present and voted in favor of said resolution.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, I have hereunto set my hand and impressed the seal of the Port Corporation this 27" day
of August 2019,

Bruno Cellucci
Acting Board Secretary



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION )
Board of Directors Meeting — August 27, 2019 ‘

\ SIPC

INFORMATION ITEM:

D. MARKETING COMMITTEE REPORT & PHOENIX/ARTLIP
COMMUNICATIONS REPORT '

PHOENIX STRATEGIES/ARTLIP COMMUNICATIONS REPORT ATTACHED.



To:

From:

D)~ v

T R G I E S

rusLs LranTa GOMMUNIGATIONS

MEMORANDUM

Andrew Saporito, Executive Director & CEO
Phoenix Strategies / Artlip Communications

Subject: Activity Report for August 2019

Date:

August 15, 2019

The following reports on the activities of Phoenix Strategies / Artlip Communications
joint venture on behalf of the South Jersey Port Corporation for the period from July
10, 2019 through August 14, 2018.

We met with the Executive Director and Senior Marketing Manager on August 12t and
are working on the following:

Updating the 50t anniversary edition of Port-O-Call magazine

Writing the Annual Report

Preparing a Port guide handout that wili highlight port / terminal capabilities
Adding a Linked-In page with goal to have scheduled updates to SJPC social
media pages

Preparing an ad for Heavy Lift & Project Forwarding International magazine’s
September/October 2019 edition which has distribution to over 20,000 executives
involved in the prOJect cargo supply chain and will be distributed at Breakbulk
Americas exhibition in Houston, as well as the Offshore Energy exhibition in
Amsterdam.

Investigating costs for an updated Economic Impact Study as well as market
analysis with goal to prepare a strategic marketing plan for 2020.



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
Board of Directors Meeting — August 27, 2019

INFORMATION ITEM:

E. SECURITY UPDATE




SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
Board of Directors Meeting — August 27, 2019

INFORMATION ITEM:

F. PAULSBORO MARINE TERMINAL PROJECT UPDATES

The Paulsboro Marine Terminal Project updates are provided by the Gloucester County
Improvement Authority.




SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
Board of Directors Meeting — August 27, 2019

INFORMATION ITEM:
G. STORM DAMAGE CLAIMS

The Port experienced storm damage as the result of two recent summer storms.

On June 19, 2019, 57 wood ci‘ates that were in storage were damaged by water as the result of
roof leaks. The crates were all located at the Broadway Terminal. The buildings involved were
A,C,Dand Z

On July 23, 2019, the roof of the Balzano Terminal C Building sustained severe damage from
wind and rain. A damaging straight-line wind came through the Balzano Terminal from the west
and caused extensive damage to the roof, skylights, exhaust vents and some product that was in
storage. This same incident also caused damage at the Broadway Terminal. At Broadway, some
of the Building A-1 cells and the south end of the C Building suffered moderate roof damage.

Insurance claims have been submitted and are in the process of being resolved. The financial
mpact to the Port could be up to $200,000 as these are two claims and our deductible for this
claim type is $100,000 per claim.

i



SOUTH JERSEY PORT CORPORATION
Board of Directors Meeting — August 27, 2019

MATTERS INVOLVING
LITIGATION, PERSONNEL & SPECIAL MATTERS

The subject matter is covered by one or more of the following legal exemptions:

Matters made confidential by state, federal law or rule by court.

Disclosure would result in an unwarranted invasion of individual privacy, unless the person affected consents in writing.

Disclosure would impair the body’s right to receive federal or state funds.

Collective bargaining. )

Lease or acquisition of property, setting of banking rates, investment of public funds if disclosure would harm the public interest.
Investigations into violations of law.

Strategies to protect public security.

Pending, ongoing or anticipated litigation or contract negotiation, including attorney-client privilege. The threat of litigation must be more than
theoretical for this exemption to apply.

Personnel matters affecting employees of the public bodies, unless all parties request or consent to a public hearing. Prior to discussion of
personnel, affected employees must be given notice, known as a Rice notice, which gives the employee the right to request a public hearing.
Proceedings that could result in a suspension, civil penalty, or loss of a license or permit.

1. COUNSEL’S REPORT



